
LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 14, 2022, 6:00 PM 

Santiam Travel Station 750 S. Third Street, Lebanon, OR 97355 

DISTRICT GOALS:  Improve Student Achievement, K-3 Literacy, On-Time Graduation 

MEETING AGENDA 

Meeting Agenda April 14, 2022   1 

1. WELCOME

A. Call to Order
B. Flag Salute

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This is a time for citizens to address the Board.  The Chair will recognize speaker(s) at the
designated time.  All speakers shall identify themselves and state their name before speaking.
Speakers are asked to provide their name, address and telephone number on the Speaker’s Sign-in
Sheet.  Each speaker may address the Board for three minutes.

        Action:  Informational 

        Action:  Informational 

  Action:  Approval Requested 

 Action:  Approval Requested 

 Action:  Approval Requested 

3. COUNSELING PRESENTATION, pg. 4

4. SUMMER SCHOOL UPDATE, pg. 14

5. LHS LANGUAGE ARTS ADOPTION, pg. 16

6. 2022-23 AMENDED CERTIFIED CALENDAR, pg. 19

7. CONSENT AGENDA

A. March 10, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes, pg. 22
B. Policy Updates – Second Reading, pg. 43: 

CODE TITLE 
REQUIRED 

ACB 
ACB-AR 

Every Student Belongs 
Bias Incident Complaint Procedure 

GBL Personnel Records 

IGBAF-AR Special Education – Individualized Education Program (IEP) 

IGBAG-AR Special Education – Procedural Safeguards 

IGBB Talented and Gifted Program 

IGBHA 
IGBHA-AR 

Alternative Education Programs 
Evaluation of Alternative Education Programs 

JFCF Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen 
Dating Violence, or Domestic Violence - Student 

Page 1



Meeting Agenda April 14, 2022 2 

HIGHLY RECOMMENDED 

CM Compliance and Reporting on Standards 

IJ School Counseling Program 

BDDH 
BDDH-AR 

Public Comment at Board Meetings 
Public Comment at Board Meetings 

IIA Instructional Resources/Instructional Materials 

JECB Admission of Nonresident Students 

IL Assessment Program 

CONDITIONALLY REQUIRED 

IKF Graduation Requirements 

OPTIONAL 
BBAA Individual Board Member’s Authority and Responsibilities 

IGDJ Interscholastic Activities 

JBB Educational Equity 

IKFB Graduation Exercises 

C. Hiring:

NAME POSITION FTE START 
DATE 

END 
DATE 

Blaine Conley District Nurse 1.0 4/25/2022 
Katharine Dorman Instructional Coach – Behavior (Districtwide) 1.0 3/11/2022 

2022-23 New Hires 
Toni-Lynn Benoit Social Studies Teacher – Lebanon High School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Stefennie Brooling Special Education Teacher – Seven Oak 1.0 8/29/2022 
Danny Canty Music Teacher – Seven Oak 1.0 8/29/2022 
John Carey Mathematics Teacher – Lebanon High School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Matthew Clark Elementary Music Teacher 1.0 8/29/2022 
Brandi Dooley Elementary Teacher 1.0 8/29/2022 
Marianna Fosselman Spanish Teacher – Lebanon High School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Madelyn George Elementary Teacher 1.0 8/29/2022 
Tess Irwin Elementary Teacher – Pioneer School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Stacey Jubb Title I Teacher – Riverview School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Bridgit Mengoni Elementary Teacher – Cascades School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Zachary Short Special Education Teacher – Lebanon High 

School 
1.0 8/29/2022 

Rebecca Stiles Elementary Teacher 1.0 8/29/2022 
Monica Turkisher Elementary Teacher – Pioneer School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Barbara Wilson Special Education Teacher – Seven Oak 1.0 8/29/2022 

Page 2



Meeting Agenda April 14, 2022 3 

  Action:  Informational 

  Action:  Informational 

8. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
A. Operations
B. Human Resources
C. Finance, pg. 108

9. COMMUNICATION

A. Board
B. Superintendent 

10. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

The Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors welcomes you to our regular meeting. It
is the Board's goal to hold an effective and efficient meeting to conduct the business of the District. 
In keeping with this goal, the Board provides a place for Audience Comments on each of its regular 
agendas. This is a time when you can provide statements or ask questions. The Board allows three 
minutes for each speaker. The language below discusses the Public Meetings Law and public 
participation in such meetings. 

"The Public Meetings Law is a public attendance law, not a public participation law. Under the 
Public Meetings Law, governing body meetings are open to the public except as otherwise 
provided by law. ORS 192.630 The right of public attendance guaranteed by the Public Meetings 
Law does not include the right to participate by public testimony or comment. 

"Other statutes, rules, charters, ordinances, and bylaws outside the Public Meetings Law may 
require governing bodies to hear public testimony or comment on certain matters. But in the 
absence of such a requirement, a governing body may conduct a meeting without any public 
participation. Governing bodies voluntarily may allow limited public participation at their 
meetings.” 

Oregon Attorney General's Administrative Law Manual and Uniform and Model Rules of 
Procedure under the Administrative Procedures Act. Hardy Myers, Attorney General, 
March 27, 2000. 

11. ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming meeting dates: 

May 12, 2022 – Regular Meeting at 6:00 PM 
May 19, 2022 – Budget Committee Meeting at 6:00 PM 
May 27, 2022 – Budget Committee Meeting at 6:00 PM 
June 9, 2022 – Budget Hearing and Regular Meeting at 6:00 PM 
July 14, 2022 – Reorganizational Meeting at 6:00 PM 

Page 3



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3 
 

Counseling Presentation 

 
Page 4



BOARD 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Jennifer Meckley 
 
Date: April 8, 2022     Meeting Date:  April 14, 2022 
 
Re: Comprehensive School Counseling Program   

 

School 
Name 

Needs Services  Outcomes  

Cascades Improve social-emotional learning, self-
awareness, self-confidence, relationship 
skills, and decision making. 

● 1X week class-wide lessons  
● Small group interventions- students identified 

through DESSA. 
● MTSS team meetings every 6 weeks. 
● Referrals to community supports. 

● Small group students identified: 
Kinder-5 
First-4 
Second-7 
Third-6 
Fourth-4 
Fifth-9 
Sixth-6 

● Quarterly DESSA scores 
● Qualitative report from teachers/staff 

Green 
Acres 

Improve self-regulation, anxiety, 
confidence, relational aggression, self 
care and school engagement 

 

● 2x week social skill groups 
● Interventions for DESSA identified students 
● Referrals to LCMH and other community supports 
● Weekly meetings with at risk students 

 

● Self-Regulation unit for kindergarten, post-
test data to follow 

● Behavioral referral data and CICO & FBA 
data 

● Qualitative report from teachers 

● Referrals to community support (LCMH, 
Welcome Center, etc.) 

 
Page 5



Hamilton 
Creek 

K-5 
Improve self regulation, self awareness, 
empathy, health friendships, conflict 
resolution, and decision making, coping 
strategies 
6-8 
Self regulation, empathy, equity and 
diversity, healthy relationships, bullying, 
conflict resolution, mental health 

● Weekly Lessons/ Small Groups/Individual 
Counseling 

● MTSS (LCMH, Be Undivided, Jackson Street 
Youth, DESSA, QPR Training, Data Review) 

● Middle School Needs Assessment 
 

● 87% Student Contact 
● 15 small groups/5 weeks 
● 15 referrals to LCMH 
● 6 Jackson Street Groups 
● 13% positive growth in Strength Students 

Winter DESSA 
● 9% drop in Students in Need Winter DESSA 
● 4 YST & 14 Welcome Center Referrals 

 

Lacomb Emotional regulation and coping skills ● Middle school Needs Assessment 2x a year to 
guide counseling services.  

● Pre/post assessments for groups/ classroom 
lessons. 

● Interventions based on DESSA results. 
● Monthly classroom lessons. 

● Individual & small group counseling 
● Improved emotional regulation & academic 

success 
● Referrals to outside resources 
● Weekly scheduled meetings with students. 

Pioneer Distinguish between appropriate and 
inappropriate behavior. 
Self awareness 
Coping and resiliency 
Improved self-care, school engagement, 
peer social interactions 

● Calming corner/areas in the classrooms. 
● Social Skill groups/Lunch/recess 

friendship/communication skill groups. 
● Scheduled weekly check-ins  
● MTSS team weekly meetings  
● Second Step classroom lessons. 

● De-regulation sessions 
● Crisis intervention & supports established at 

school  
● Improved behavior/academic engagement 
● FBA’s, CICO’s etc.  established for students 

of concern. 

Riverview Self-confidence and self-motivation in 
classroom setting 

 

● Small group interventions focused on specific 
DESSA criteria 

● Classroom lessons throughout school year 
(average of 20 lessons per classroom) 

● MTSS team whole-child discussions/supports 
● Referrals to community supports 

● 6 Kindergarten students identified and 
participating in Dessa Skill focused small 
group 

● Post test (DESSA) results TBD 
● Behavioral referral data 
● Qualitative report from teacher 

SOK Support to overcome student barriers 
related to self-confidence, motivation, 
academics, attendance, anxiety, 
depression, social relationships, 
behavior, and problem solving 

● Collaborate with families, administrators, and 
colleagues to support student success & make 
appropriate referrals to community organizations 
(LCMH, Mentorship, Welcome Center, Tutoring, 
Boys & Girls Club, Jackson Street Youth Services, 

● Small Group Students Total: 67 (6th: 16; 7th: 
34; 8th: 27); Students identified through 
DESSA, self-referral, student needs 
assessment, teacher referral, counselor 
referral, and/or family referral 

 
Page 6



YST) 
● Small groups: Confidence, Anger Reduction, Social 

Skills, Grief, Girls Group, Boys Group, Positive 
Thinking 

● Individual student meetings: SEL, academic, future 
planning/college & career 

● Weekly Character Strong (SEL) lessons, monthly 
CIS Junior (college & career) lessons 

● SOK students will have developed the start of 
their 6-year Education Plan and Profile by the 
time they finish 7th grade 

 

LHS Support to overcome academic barriers: 
Graduation planning, post high school 
planning, and social & emotional support 
and skill training. 

● Collaborate with families, administrators, alt. ed., & 
grad. coaches to mentor & form academic skills 

● Weekly advisory for social emotional (SEL) skills, 
resilience, & career development 

● 1845 student & family meetings (9/20/21-4/4/22); 
Academic, social, personal, college & career...  

● District school based mental health therapist 
(serving all families and students) 

● Referrals: Connect families to mental health 
therapist (LCMH), D&A, tutoring, Welcome 
Center,… 

● QPR to all staff: Improvement in identifing 
suicide warning signs, asking about ideation, 
& refering to help 

● Sources of Strength presentation in health 
classes: stress reduced, ability to use 
resilience up 

● On track to graduate: September 2021 (10th-
12th grade) = 58%, March 2022 = 70.3%   

 
 
 
 
 

Elementary Curriculum 

Tier 1: Universal- all students receive: Second Step, Character Strong, Purposeful People, Mind Up, Kelso’s Choices 

Tier 2: Targeted- small groups (with support from our BSP’s): Zones of Regulation, Superflex, Social Detective, Thinking about you…Thinking about me, Social Behavior Mapping, Grief, 
Family Changes, Executive Functioning Skills, Military Families, Healthy Friendships, Self-Esteem, Relational Aggression 

Tier 3: Intensive- one on one (with support from our BSP’s) 

Tier III Services 
School  # of LCMH Therapists # of students accessing 

 
Page 7



Cascades 1, 1x per week 7  

Green Acres 1, 1x per week 14 

Hamilton Creek 1, 1x per week  

Lacomb 1, 1x per week 7 

Pioneer 1, 1x per week & 1 volunteer graduate student 14 Active and 4 Registered 

Riverview 2  11 

Santiam 
Academy 

Ref. to LCMH 6 

Ralston Academy 1, 1x per week 7 

SOK 1, 1x per week 8 

LHS 4; LCSD mental health specialist & 3 from LCMH 1x per week.  54 Referrals, 51 Students Accessed 

 
 

 
Page 8



LCSD’s Comprehensive School 
Cou n selin g  Pr ogr am

 
Page 9



Let’s start with the WHY:

Wh y wou ld  you r  sch ool/ d is t r ict  wan t  a  com p r eh en s ive sch ool cou n selin g  
p r ogr am ?

Higher 
Graduation 

Rates

Increase 
College and 

Career 
Readiness 

Skills

Lower 
Retention 

Rates

Increased 
Student 

Achievement

Reduced 
Discipline 
Referrals

Improved 
Attendance

Ensures 
Consistency 
of Services

 
Page 10



Standards guiding school counseling programs to…

School Counselors Have 4 Domains 

Academic 
Development-
Implement 
strategies activities 
to support and 
maximize each 
student’s ability to 
learn.

Career Development-
1. Help students understand 

the connection between 
school and the world of work

2. help students plan for and 
make a successful transition 
from school to 
postsecondary education 
and/or the world of work 
and from job to job across 
the life-span.

Social/Emotional 
Development-
Help students 
manage emotions 
and learn and 
apply interpersonal 
skills. 

Learning to 
Contribute-
Students prepare to 
be involved as 
contributing members 
of their local and 
global community 

 
Page 11



Summary:

Domains in Teachpoint (3rd 
ed.)

● Foundation (Define)
● Management (Manage)
● Delivery (Deliver)
● Accountability (Asses s )

 
Page 12



ASCA Student Standards: Mindsets & Behaviors for Student Success 
K-12 College-, Career- and Life-Readiness Standards for Every Student

Each of the following standards can be applied to the academic, career and social/emotional domains.

Category 1: Mindset Standards 
School counselors encourage the following mindsets for all students.

Category 2: Behavior Standards 
School counselors provide culturally sustaining instruction, appraisal and advisement, and counseling to help all 

students demonstrate:

Learning Strategies Self-Management Skills Social Skills

 
Page 13



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4 
 

Summer School Update 

 
Page 14



Summer School planning update – draft 4/14/22 

 

Elementary & Middle School 

DATES: June 20th - August 11th … (minus the 4th of July week) … 7 weeks total 

DAYS: Monday - Thursday  

TIMES:  core academic work in the am … lunch … enrichment in the early afternoon.  “Enrichment” could 
be arts/crafts, physical activities, a field trip, and/or something with team-building, social emotional 
learning, leadership development, etc. 

 LOCATIONS:  Pioneer (CAS, GNA, PIO, RIV) and Lacomb (HC, LAC) … MS at Seven Oak 

 

High School 

DATES: June 20th – July 14th … (minus the 4th of July week) … 3 weeks total.  Edgenuity on-line courses 
will be open through the 3rd week of August for those who are still completing courses … 9 weeks total 

DAYS: Monday - Thursday  

TIMES:  am sessions – will focus on semester 2 incompletes and credit recovery focused on getting back 
on track to graduate.   

 LOCATION:  Lebanon High School and Edgenuity on-line 

 

Transportation will be provided, but not door-to-door or traditional bus stops … more likely the home 
elementary plus a few other higher-capacity stops. 

Food Services (breakfast & lunch) will be provided.   

LHS teams/clubs can participate in Cadet Teaching or Enrichment opportunities to earn funds. 

 

OVERALL K-12 COORDINATOR:  Ryan King, from Seven Oak MS 

 
Page 15



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5 
 

LHS Language Arts Adoption 

 
Page 16



 

 

Lebanon High School 

Language Arts Department / Curriculum Adoption Committee 

2021-2022 
 

 

Meredith Work – Department Chair 

Jon Bernard 

Greg Bond 

Nick Cupparo 

Roxie Dorn 

Jeremy Gibson 

Steve Twomey 

Mark Vandehey 

Haley Vernon 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 17



 

9-12 English Language Arts Adoption Process 
 

Timeline: 

October 14, pre-planning meeting, attended by LHS Principal, Craig Swanson, LHS English 
Language Department Chair, Meredith Work, and Bill Wittman, District Curriculum Coord. 

 

October 21, ODE releases “approved” materials list, shared and discussed with the team 

 

November 9, began ordering sample materials from the recently-announced publishers that 
made the “approved” list for ODE. 

 

December 1, sample materials began arriving, a preview area was set up in the front office for 
ELA Dept. members to preview and mark materials they have analyzed.   

 

January 25 & 26, Willamette ESD hosted the “caravan” video presentations from each 
publisher.  Video presentations were recorded and saved.  They were later shared with our 9-12 
ELA Department.  These were 40 min. of presentation followed by 10 min. of Q & A. 

 

March 2 & March 9, two finalists presentations directly to our LHS ELA Dept. team – followed 
immediately by a Q & A session.   

 

March 18, LHS posted the link for parent and community member feedback on the 2 finalists – 
complete with website and presentation links and a SurveyMonkey. 

 

March 31, the parent and community member feedback survey closed – results were analyzed, 
and a final determination was made to recommend, “Into Literature” & “Writable” from 
Houghton Mifflin Harcourt. 

 

 
Page 18



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
 

2022-23 Amended Certified Calendar 

 
Page 19



Class P C D H Contract

S M T W H F S S M T W H F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 P1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 H5 *6 7 8 9 10
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 E14 15 16 17
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 E21 22 23 24
28 D29 D30 P31 25 26 27 E28 29 30

E=Early Release

Class: 0 Class: 19
Other: D= 2 P=1 Other: H= 1 P= 1

19 2 0 2 1 24
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S

1 1 E2 3 4 5 1 2 3
2 3 4 E5 6 7 8 6 7 8 E9 10 H11 12 4 5 6 E7 8 9 10
9 10 11 E12 13 14 15 13 14 15 E16 17 18 19 11 12 13 E14 15 16 17

16 17 19 E19 20 21 22 21 21 22 23 H24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
23 24 Q25 P26 C27 C28 29 27 28 29 E30 25 H26 27 28 29 30 31
30 31
Class: 18 P= 1 Class: 18 P= 0 Class: 12
Other: C= 2 H= 0 Other: C= 0 H= 2 Other: H= 1

48 1 2 0 3 54
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S
1 2 3 E4 5 6 7 E1 2 3 4 E1 2 3 4
8 9 10 E11 12 13 14 5 6 7 E8 9 10 11 5 6 7 E8 9 10 11

15 H16 17 E18 19 20 21 12 13 14 E15 16 17 18 12 13 14 E15 16 17 18
22 23 24 E25 26 S27 28 19 H20 21 E22 23 24 25 19 20 Q21 P22 C23 C24 25
29 P30 P31 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30 31

Class: 18 Class: 19 Class: 15
Other: H= 1 P= 2 Other: H= 1 P= 0 Other: C= 2 P= 1

52 3 2 0 2 59
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S

1 1 2 E3 4 5 6 1 E2 3
2 3 4 E5 6 7 8 7 8 9 E10 11 12 13 4 5 6 E7 8 9 10
9 4 11 E12 13 14 15 14 15 16 E17 18 19 20 11 12 13 E14 P15 16 17

16 17 18 E19 20 21 22 21 22 23 E24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
23 24 25 E26 27 28 29 28 H29 30 E31 25 26 27 28 29 30
30 52 1 0 0 1 54

Class: 20 Class: 22 Class: 10
Other: Other: H= 1 Other: P= 1

171 7 4 2 7 191
ALL SUBJECT TO BARGAINING CONTRACT

Adoption Date: 3/10/2022 

JUN 2023

MAR 2023

OCT 2022 NOV 2022 DEC 2022

Lebanon Community Schools 2022-23 Calendar

D=Staff Development AUG 2022 SEP 2022
P=Preparation
Shaded = Non Contract
H=Holiday
C=Parent Conferences

APR 2023

S=Semester
Q=Quarter

JAN 2023 FEB 2023

MAY 2023

4/8/2022
 

Page 20



Amended 4/14/22

Staff Preparation Days

Holiday - Labor Day 

First Day of School

Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOL

End of Third Quarter

Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL

Parent Conferences - NO SCHOOL

Strawberry Festival - Early Release

ALL SUBJECT TO BARGAINING CONTRACT

Amended Date:  4/14/22

Holiday - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Day - Winter Break - NO SCHOOL

Classes Resume

Holiday - Martin Luther King Jr. Day - NO SCHOOL

End of First Semester

Staff Preparation Days - NO SCHOOL 

* Some students may begin school later due to incoming student orientation.  More information will be provided by the school.

Early Release Collaboration Days will be every Wednesday, beginning September 14, 2022 for ALL  schools.

Holiday - Presidents' Day - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Days - Spring Break - NO SCHOOL

Holiday - Memorial Day - NO SCHOOL

High School Graduation

Classes End - Early Release

Staff Preparation Day

Adoption Date: 3/10/2022

January 16, 2023

January 27, 2023

January 30 - 31, 2023

February 20, 2023

March 21, 2023

March 22, 2023

March 23 - 24, 2023

2022
August 29-30, 2022 Staff Professional Development Days

August 31-September 1, 2022

September 2, 2022 Non-Contract Day

September 5, 2022

Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 

Parent Conferences - NO SCHOOL

September 6, 2022 Open House/Orientation

September 7, 2022

October 25, 2022 End of First Quarter

October 26, 2022

October 27- 28, 2022

Lebanon Community Schools 2022-23 Calendar

March 27 - 31, 2023

May 29, 2023

June 2, 2023

June 6, 2023

June 14, 2023

June 15, 2023

November 11, 2022 Holiday - Veterans' Day - NO SCHOOL

November 23, 2022 Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOL

November 24, 2022 Holiday - Thanksgiving Day - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOLNovember 25, 2022

December 19-23, 2022

December 26, 2022

December 27-30, 2022

2023
January 2, 2023

January 3, 2023

Non-Contract Day - Winter Break - NO SCHOOL

4/8/2022
 

Page 21



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 
 

Consent Agenda 
March 10, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Page 22



LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 10, 2022, 6:00 PM 

Santiam Travel Station    750 S. Third Street, Lebanon, OR 97355 

MEETING MINUTES 

Board Meeting Minutes March 10, 2022 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mike Martin, Chair 
Richard Borden, Vice Chair 
Tom Oliver, Member 

Absent:  Tammy Schilling, Member 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 
Bo Yates, Superintendent via Zoom 
Jennifer Meckley, Assistant Superintendent 
William Lewis, Business Director 
Kim Grousbeck, Human Resources Director 
Bill Wittman, School Improvement and Federal 

Programs Director 

The meeting minutes were recorded by Executive Secretary Ruth Hopkins. 

1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER

Board Chair Mike Martin called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM and led the flag salute.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Audience member Sabrina Mann requested the opportunity to address the Board.  She thanked
Superintendent Yates for attending the town hall meeting regarding School Based Health Centers.
She had some additional questions for the Board and provided a written copy of those to each
Board member.

Audience member Tana Nicholson requested the opportunity to address the Board.  She asked
when parents and grandparents would be allowed to go back into the schools as volunteers.  She
added that she does not want to be discriminated against because of vaccination status or whether
or not they have a grandchild in Lebanon schools.

Audience member Keith Murphy requested the opportunity to address the Board.  He discussed
several topics, including the decline in enrollment for all school districts, critical race theory, gender
identity issues and the expansion that is being planed for Seven Oak Middle School.

3. INTERVIEW OF ZONE 5 BOARD APPLICANTS

Board Chair Mike Martin identified the applicants for the open Zone 5 position, Roger Mauer and
Nichole Piland, and asked that they share a little about themselves.

Roger Maurer shared that he is a retired math teacher, and that he has four children that have
graduated from Lebanon schools.

 
Page 23



Board Meeting Minutes March 10, 2022 

Nichole Piland shared that she currently works for Linn County Tax Office and she has two children 
who have graduated from Lebanon schools.   

Each candidate was then asked the questions that are included in the board information packet and 
is available online.   

4. ZONE 5 BOARD MEMBER APPOINTMENT AND OATH OF OFFICE

Upon motion made by Member Tom Oliver, duly seconded by Vice Chair Richard Borden, the Board
voted unanimously to appoint Nichole Piland to the Zone 5 position of the Lebanon School Board.

Whereupon, Nichole Piland was then sworn into office and seated on the Board.

5. COVID-19 UPDATE

Superintendent Yates shared that the COVID infection rates are starting to slow down.  Linn
County’s risk level has now been lowered to low.  Following the guidance from the Governor,
wearing masks in schools will be optional as of March 14th.   We will move forward using the same
procedures that we have been following, but masking is now optional.

He added that they are looking to start bringing volunteers back in schools after spring break,
however they will need to be vaccinated.  They have also recently made the decision to send the 6th

grade students to outdoor school this year.

6. BOND UPDATE

William Lewis then gave an update on the bond measure.  He shared that the school district turned
in the election paperwork on February 25, 2022 and they have been posted to the appropriate
publications.  If there are no concerns turned in to the county, then on March 17, 2022, the district
will file the final paperwork for what will be on the ballot in May.  There is not going to be a voter’s
pamphlet, so the district is trying to provide as much information as possible to the public to
answer any questions or concerns surrounding the bond.

7. LHS GRADUATION RATE AND ON-TRACK DATA

Lebanon High School Principal Craig Swanson presented the high school data to the Board.  He
shared some highlights, such as students maintaining an 85% attendance rate, which has been
affected by long quarantines.  He added that the high school staff has been affected as well, but
they have come together to cover for each other when staff members are out by giving up their
prep times to cover other classes.

He then shared that the graduation rate does not change much from when a student is a freshman,
to the time they become seniors.  The rates have been in the mid-70 percent for the last few years,
but they have made some gains.  The freshman class for 2020-21 was at 53% and the high school
staff has been providing supports to help those students improve.  He said that this year’s freshman
is now at 82% that are on-track to graduate and last year’s freshman have improved from 53% to
63%.

 
Page 24



Board Meeting Minutes March 10, 2022 

He then reviewed the data for current students regarding attendance, on track and on time to 
graduate, as well as improvement from the beginning of the school year.  He mentioned that the 
high school has GRIT, which stands for Graduation Rate Improvement Team, and they provide a 
graduation plan for students who fall off track to graduate. 

He explained that the high school has developed a 9th grade cohort model, where three teachers 
have the same 75 students.  These students rotate through math, language arts and science with 
those teachers.  Toward the end of the first semester, on early release Wednesdays, they have 
invited students to come in and complete assignments.  Teachers are available during this time, as 
well as classified and administrative staff.  There are National Honor Society students who show up 
to tutor their peers as well.  They have on average 130 students who attend this on Wednesdays.  
This is called Warrior Academic Overtime.  As a result, it has increased the pass rate from 80% to 
90% to finish the semester and it has continued into the second semester. 

The high school went through the accreditation process recently, and Principal Swanson shared the 
status was positive.  This process is done through Cognia, who is recommending full accreditation 
for the high school.  The process showed that there were seven areas to improve on, 16 quality 
practices and seven areas that demonstrate noteworthy practices.  Principal Swanson then thanked 
Associate Principal Chrissy Shanks for the work that she did on the accreditation process. 

He then shared that parents have planned and hosted a winter formal for students on a Santiam 
Train excursion.  On April 30, the high school is planning to host the Junior Senior Prom at Boulder 
Falls.  The fall and winter sports have concluded, with a 2022 state championship for the cheer 
team. The band and choir programs have competitions coming up.  The baseball, wrestling and 
leadership have been able to travel out of state.  The ROTC team won a championship in Arizona.  
FFA is currently gearing up for the Linn County Fair.  The boys’ basketball team did a local cemetery 
cleanup project.  There will be a New Warrior Showcase on March 31 to help the 8th graders with 
forecasting for next school year, and they are also inviting home school and charter school families 
to that. 

8. 2022-23 CERTIFIED CALENDAR

Kim Grousbeck presented the 2022-23 certified calendar.  She shared that it is in alignment with
local colleges and schools.

Upon motion made by Member Tom Oliver, duly seconded by Vice Chair Richard Borden, the Board
voted unanimously to approve the 2022-23 certified calendar as presented.

9. K-5 ELA ADOPTION RECOMMENDATION

Bill Wittman shared the information on Amplify CKLA, which stands for Common Knowledge
Language Arts.  This adoption will last about six years.

He then went through the process for the adoption, starting in October when the committee was
formed, and going through to February, when the decision was made to move forward with
Amplify.  Cumulatively, the committee spent about 300 hours on the entire adoption process.

The question was asked about what made this particular one stand out.  It was answered that they
wanted a heavy phonics base through 3rd grade, but also wanted that to continue in the upper

 
Page 25



Board Meeting Minutes March 10, 2022 

grades.  There is also digital components and ease of use for teachers, as well as built-in 
interventions.  The program also has a solid writing component imbedded in it.   

Upon motion made by Vice Chair Richard Borden, duly seconded by Member Tom Oliver, the Board 
voted unanimously to approve the adoption of the Amplify CKLA for the K-5 language arts 
curriculum. 

10. SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RENEWAL AND NON-RENEWAL

Upon motion made by Member Tom Oliver, duly seconded by Vice Chair Richard Borden, the Board
voted unanimously to approve the Superintendent’s Recommendations for Renewal and Non-
Renewal as presented.

11. RESOLUTION 2122-6

William Lewis presented Resolution No. 2122-6 to approve Soderstrom Architects as the
architectural design firm for the Seven Oak Middle School project.  This project is funded by ESSER
II and III.  The contract amount is $372,994.00.  Steve Earle, the construction manager from HMK,
was also available via Zoom to answer any questions the Board had regarding this resolution.

There were no questions.

Upon motion made by Member Tom Oliver, duly seconded by Member Nichole Piland, the Board
voted unanimously to approve Resolution No. 2122-6 as presented.

12. CONSENT AGENDA

A. February 10, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes and Budget Meeting Minutes
B. Policies Updates – First Reading
C. Hiring

Upon motion made by Vice Chair Richard Borden, duly seconded by Member Nichole Piland, the 
Board voted unanimously to approve the consent agenda in its entirety, as presented, thereby 
approving the February 10, 2022 Board meeting minutes and budget meeting minutes; moving 
policies ACB, ACB-AR, GBL, IGBAF-AR, IGBAG-AR, IGBB, IGBHA, IGBHA-AR, JFCF, CM, IJ, BDDH, 
BDDH-AR, IIA, JECB, IL, IKF, BBAA, IGDJ, JBB, and IKFB from first reading to second reading; and the 
hiring of Teresa Saling, John Carey and Tess Irwin. 

13. DEPARTMENT REPORTS

A. Operations

Superintendent Yates shared the operations report.  He mentioned they would be looking at start 
and stop times for the schools to see if they can reduce the number of bus routes for next year.  
The district will have a company come in and map out the bus routes to give advice.  This will 
include the 16 new apartment complexes that are currently being built in the city. 

B. Human Resources

 
Page 26



Board Meeting Minutes March 10, 2022 

Kim Grousbeck presented the HR report.  She shared that the department is gearing up for the busy 
time of the year.  They are currently looking at 22 licensed openings to recruit for.  They will be able 
to attend the Educator Fair in Portland this year.  She mentioned that they will need to be creative 
with how they recruit moving forward, and that retention is the new recruitment. 

C. Finance

There was nothing additional to report for the Finance Department. 

14. COMMUNICATION

A. Board

Member Tom Oliver shared that he felt the First Amendment right of free speech is important, but 
he would hate to see the public comments portion of the meeting used for hate speech. 

Chair Mike Martin discussed the reason that the sixth grade had been held back in the elementary 
schools and why we are now looking to move the sixth grade back to the middle school.   

B. Superintendent

Superintendent Yates mentioned it was Classified Appreciation Week.  He shared he is proud of our 
classified employees.  They are the backbone of the school district, as they live in our community 
and support all of our kids.  They are a fantastic group of people. 

He also shared that we have very skilled people who are a part of our district administration team.  
He mentioned that it felt good to be getting back to educating kids and he is happy to have the 
administration team that we do.   

15. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

No members of the audience requested the opportunity to address the Board.

16. MEETING ADJOURNED

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 7:23 PM.

___________________________________________ 
Mike Martin, Board Chair 

___________________________________________ 
Bo Yates, Superintendent 

 
Page 27



 
Page 28



 
Page 29



 
Page 30



 
Page 31



 
Page 32



 
Page 33



 
Page 34



 
Page 35



 
Page 36



 
Page 37



 
Page 38



 
Page 39



 
Page 40



 
Page 41



Employee 

Boykin, Marion 

Eilers, Bryan 

Estes, Maggi 

Gorman, Angela 

Employment Status (Directors/Supervisors and Confidential Staff) 

Recommended Status Beginning 2022-23 School Year 

Position Title Recommended Status Current Assignment 

Custodial Supervisor Renewal Supervisor 

Maintenance Supervisor Renewal Supervisor 

Director of Transportation Renewal Director 

Director of Nutrition Renewal Director 

Grousbeck, Kimberly Director of Human Resources Renewal Director 

Klingler, Peter 

Lewis, William 

Port, Alisha 

Hopkins, Ruth 

Meyer, Andrea 

Fyke, Denise 

Director of Technology Infrastructure Services 

Director of Business 

Director of Technology Application & Support Services 

Executive Secertary 

Human Resource Specialist 

Human Resource Specialist 

Renewal 

Renewal 

Renewal 

Renewal 

Renewal 

Renewal 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Confidential 

Confidential 

Confidential 

 
Page 42



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 
 

Consent Agenda 
Policy Updates – Second Reading 

 
Page 43



R11/30/21│RS Every Student Belongs – ACB 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
Code: ACB 
Adopted:  
 

Every Student Belongs 
 
The district is dedicated to the success of every student in each of our schools. For that success to occur, 
the district is committed to equity by recognizing institutional barriers and creating access and 
opportunities that benefit each student. Equity at Lebanon Community School District will not be confused 
with equality, where all students are treated the same. Equity will be an enduring commitment where race 
will no longer be a predictor of student achievement; where historically underserved groups increase in 
capacity and power; and where barriers to student success have been mitigated or eliminated 

All students are entitled to a high quality educational experience, free from discrimination or harassment 
based on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin. 

All employees are entitled to work in an environment that is free from discrimination or harassment based 
on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin. 

All visitors are entitled to participate in a school or educational environment that is free from 
discrimination or harassment based on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, 
disability or national origin. 

“Bias incident” means a person’s hostile expression of animus toward another person, relating to the other 
person’s perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin, of 
which criminal investigation or prosecution is impossible or inappropriate. Bias incidents may include 
derogatory language or behavior. 

 “Symbol of hate” means a symbol, image, or object that expresses animus on the basis of race, color, 
religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin including, a noose, swastika, or 
confederate flag , and whose display:  

1. Is reasonably likely to cause a substantial disruption of or material interference with school 
activities; or  
 

2. Is reasonably likely to interfere with the rights of students by denying them full access to the 
services, activities, and opportunities offered by a school. 
 

The district prohibits the use or display of any symbols of hate on school property1 or in an education 
program2 except where used in teaching curriculum that is aligned with state standards of education for 
public schools. 

                                                 
 
1 “School property” means any property under the control of the district. 

2 “Education program” includes any program, service, school or activity sponsored by the district. 

 
Page 44



R11/30/21│RS Every Student Belongs – ACB 
2-2 

 

In responding to the use of any symbols of hate or bias incidents, the district will use non-disciplinary 
remedial action whenever appropriate. 

The district prohibits retaliation against an individual{3} because that individual has in good faith reported 
information that the individual believes is evidence of a violation of a state or federal law, rule or 
regulation. 

Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with the lawful use of district facilities pursuant to a lease or 
license. 

The district will use administrative regulation ACB-AR - Bias Incident Complaint Procedure to process 
reports or complaints of bias incidents. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 659.850 
ORS 659.852 
OAR 581-002-0005 

OAR 581-022-2312 
OAR 581-022-2370 
 

House Bill 2697 (2021) 
House Bill 3041 (2021)

 
Tinker v. Des Moines Indep. Cmty. Sch. Dist., 393 U.S. 503 (1969). 
Dariano v. Morgan Hill Unified Sch. Dist., 767 F.3d 764 (9th Cir. 2014). 
State v. Robertson, 293 Or. 402 (1982). 

                                                 
 
3 {ORS 659.852 prohibits retaliation only against students. Other statutes (and other complaint procedures) prohibit retaliation 
against staff and others for reporting or providing information regarding a complaint or investigation.} 

 
Page 45

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R11/30/21│RS Bias Incident Complaint Procedure – ACB-AR 
1-3 

 

OSBA Model Sample 
 
Code: ACB-AR 
Adopted:  
 

Bias Incident Complaint Procedure 
 
The terms “bias incident” and “symbols of hate” are defined in policy. Persons impacted by a bias incident 
or display of a symbol of hate shall be defined broadly to include persons directly targeted by an act, as 
well as the community of students as a whole who are likely to be impacted by the act.1 

Step 1: When a staff member learns of a potential bias incident or display of a symbol of hate, the staff 
member will prioritize the safety and well-being of all persons impacted and promptly report 
the incident to the building or program administrator. 

Step 2: The administrator or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the complaint, reduce the 
complaint to writing, and investigate any complaint of a bias incident. Responding staff will 
recognize the experience of all persons impacted, acknowledge the impact, commit to taking 
immediate action, and commit to preventing further harm against those persons impacted from 
taking place. Redirection procedures, if any, will: 

• Educational compotents that address the history and impact of hate; 
• Procedural components to ensure the safety, healing, and agency of those impacted by 

hate; 
• Accountability and transformation for people who cause harm; and 
• Transformation of the conditions that perpetuated the harm. 

The administrator or designee must consider whether the behavior implicates other district 
policies or civil rights laws, and if so, respond accordingly2. 

The administrator or designee will determine responsibility within 10 days of receiving the 
complaint. 

All persons impacted by the act will be provided with information relating to the investigation 
and outcome of the investigation.  At a minimum, the information provided must include: 

• That an investigation has been initiated; 
• When the investigation has been completed; 
• The findings of the investigation and the final determination based on those findings; 

and 

                                                 
1 The term “complainant” in this administrative regulation includes persons filing formal complaints and persons reporting bias 
incidents, regardless of whether the complainant is a victim. Similarly, the term “complaint” includes any report, information or 
complaint. 

2 The nature of the behavior or act must determine the process used to respond; what rights and protections are available to the 
person(s) impacted by the behavior or act; and an individual’s right to appeal to the Oregon Department of Education or the 
U.S. Department of Education.  

 
Page 46



R11/30/21│RS Bias Incident Complaint Procedure – ACB-AR 
2-3 

 

• Actions taken with the person or persons who committed the harassing behavior to 
remedy the behavior and prevent reoccurrence when the actions relate directly to a 
person impacted by the event. 

 
If any of the above information cannot be shared, a citation to the law prohibiting release and 
an explanation of how that law applies to the current situation will be provided. 

 
Step 3: If complainant or a respondent wishes to appeal the decision of the administrator or designee, 

the complainant or respondent may submit a written appeal to the superintendent within five 
school days after receipt of the administrator or designee’s response to the complaint. 

The superintendent or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the appeal and may meet with all 
parties involved. The superintendent or designee will review the merits of the complaint and 
the administrator or designee’s decision. The superintendent or designee will respond in 
writing to the complainant within 10 school days. 

The superintendent or designee will ensure that the requirements in Steps 1 and 2 (redirection 
procedures, notice, etc.) are continued to be met through Step 3, as appropriate. 

Step 4: If the complainant or respondent is not satisfied with the decision of the superintendent or 
designee, a written appeal may be filed with the Board within five school days of receipt of the 
superintendent or designee’s response to Step 3. The Board may decide to hear or deny the 
request for appeal at a Board meeting. The Board may use an executive session if the subject 
matter qualifies under Oregon law. If the Board decides to hear the appeal, the Board may 
meet with the concerned parties and their representative at the next regular or special Board 
meeting. The Board’s decision will be final and will address each allegation in the complaint 
and contain reasons for the Board’s decision. A copy of the Board’s final decision shall be sent 
to the complainant in writing within 10 days of this meeting. 

The Board will ensure that the requirements in Steps 1 and 2 (redirection procedures, notice, 
etc.) are continued to be met through Step 4, as appropriate. 

Complaints can be filed with or communicated directly to the administrator or designee, in which case 
Step 1 will be skipped. Complaints against the administrator can be directed to the superintendent or 
designee and will begin at Step 3. Complaints against the superintendent or a Board member(s) can be 
directed to the Board and will begin at Step 4. If complaints begin later than Step 1, the individuals 
reviewing the complaint will ensure that all requirements are met. 

The complainant, if a person who resides in the district, or a parent or guardian of a student who attends 
school in the district or a student, is not satisfied after exhausting local complaint procedures, the district 
fails to render a written decision within 30 days of submission of the complaint at any step or fails to 
resolve the complaint within 90 days of the initial filing of the complaint, may appeal3 the district’s final 
decision to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 
581-002-0001 – 581-002-0023. 

                                                 
3 An appeal must meet the criteria found in OAR 581-002-0005(1)(a).  

 
Page 47



R11/30/21│RS Bias Incident Complaint Procedure – ACB-AR 
3-3 

 

Complaints may also be filed directly with the U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights.4 

District administration will develop and implement instructional materials to ensure that all school 
employees, staff and students are made aware of the policy, this administrative regulation and related 
practices. The materials will include reporting procedures, educational processes, and possible 
consequences. 

When necessary, timelines may be adjusted by the district by communicating to all parties in writing. This 
communication must include a new timeline and an explanation of why the timeline must be adjusted. 

                                                 
4 Complaints must meet criteria as established by law. For more information, visit 
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/complaintintro.html 

 
Page 48

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/complaintintro.html


R5/01/201/19/22│LF Personnel Records * – GBL 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: GBL 
Adopted:  
 

Personnel Records * 
 
An official personnel file will be established for each person employed by the district. Personnel files will 
be maintained in a central location. 
 
All records containing employee medical condition information such as workers’ compensation reports 
and release or permission to return to work forms will be kept confidential, in a separate file from 
personnel records. Such records will be released only in accordance with the requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act or other applicable law. 
 
The superintendent will be responsible for establishing procedures regarding the control, use, safety and 
maintenance of all personnel records. Employees will be given a copy of evaluations, complaints and 
written disciplinary actions placed in their personnel file. All charges resulting in disciplinary action shall 
be considered a permanent part of a teacher’s personnel file and shall not be removed for any reason. 
Employees may submit a written response to any materials placed in their personnel file. 
 
Except as provided below, or required by law, district employees’1 personnel records will be available for 
use and inspection only by the following: 
 
1. The individual employee. An employee may arrange with the personnel office to inspect the contents 

of their personnel file on any day the personnel office is open for business; 

2. Others designated by the employee in writing may arrange to inspect the contents of the employee’s 
personnel file in the same manner described above; 

3. The comptroller or auditor, when such inspection is pertinent to carrying out their respective duties, 
or as otherwise specifically authorized by the Board. Information so obtained will be kept 
confidential. No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection; 

4. A Board member when specifically authorized by the Board. Information will be kept confidential. 
No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection; 

5. The superintendent and members of the central administrative staff designated by the superintendent; 

6. District administrators and supervisors who currently or prospectively supervise the employee; 

7. Employees of the personnel office; 

8. Attorneys for the district or the district’s designated representative on matters of district business; 

9. Upon receiving a request from a prospective employer issued under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 
339.374(1)(b), the district, pursuant to ORS 339.378(1), shall disclose the requested information if it 

                                                 
1 Includes former employees. 

 
Page 49



R5/01/201/19/22│LF Personnel Records * – GBL 
2-2 

 

has or has had an employment relationship with a person who is the subject of the request, no later 
than 20 days after receiving such request. The Rrecords created by the district pursuant to Oregon 
Revised Statute (ORS) 339.388(8)(c) are confidential and are not public records as defined in ORS 
192.311. The district may use the record as a basis for providing the information required to be 
disclosed about an employee under ORS 339.378(1); 

10. Upon request from a law enforcement agency, the Oregon Department of Human Services, the 
Teacher Standards and Practices Commission, or the Oregon Department of Education, in 
conducting an investigation related to suspected abuse or suspected sexual conduct, to the extent 
allowable by state and federal law, including laws protecting a person from self-incrimination; 

11. Upon request from a prospective employer or a former employee, authorized district officials may 
disclose information about a former employee’s job performance to a prospective employer and such 
disclosure is presumed to be in good faith. Presumption of good faith is rebutted by showing the 
information disclosed was knowingly false or deliberately misleading, was rendered with malicious 
purpose or violated any civil right of the former employee protected under ORS 659 or ORS 659A. 

The superintendent may permit persons other than those specified above to use and to inspect personnel 
records when, in their opinion, the person requesting access has a legitimate official purpose. The 
superintendent will determine in each case, the appropriateness and extent of such access. 
 
Release of personnel records to parties other than those listed above, will be in line with the district’s 
public records procedures. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS  30.178 
ORS 339.370 – 339.374 
ORS 339.378 
ORS 339.388 

ORS 342.143 
ORS 342.850 
ORS 652.750 
ORS Chapter 659 

ORS Chapter 659A 
OAR 581-022-2405

 
OSEA v. Lake County Sch. District, 93 Or. App. 481 (1988). 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12112 (2018); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2019); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 
(2019). 
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. § 2000ff-1 (2018). 

 
Page 50

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors--30
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-652
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
1-8 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGBAF-AR 
Adopted:  
 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** 
 
1. General IEP Information 
 

a. The district ensures that an IEP is in effect for each eligible student: 
 

(1) Before special education and related services are provided to a student; 
(2) At the beginning of each school year for each student with a disability for whom the 

district is responsible; and 
(3) Before the district implements all the special education and related services, including 

program modifications, supports and/or supplementary aids and services, as identified on 
the IEP. 

 
b. The district uses: 

 
(1) The Oregon standard IEP; or 
(2) An IEP form that has been approved by the Oregon Department of Education. 

 
c. The district develops and implements all provisions of the IEP as soon as possible following 

the IEP meeting. 
d. The IEP will be accessible to each of the student’s regular education teacher(s), the student’s 

special education teacher(s) and the student’s related services provider(s) and other service 
provider(s). 

e. The district takes steps to ensure that parent(s) are present at each IEP meeting or have the 
opportunity to participate through other means. 

f. The district ensures that each teacher and service provider is informed of: 
 

(1) Their specific responsibilities for implementing the IEP specific accommodations, 
modifications and/or supports that must be provided for, or on behalf of the student; and 

(2) Their responsibility to fully implement the IEP including any amendments the district 
and parents agreed to make between annual reviews. 

 
The district takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that parents understand the 
proceedings of the IEP team meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents with 
deafness or whose native language is other than English. 

 
g. The district provides a copy of the IEP to the parents at no cost. 
 

2. IEP Meetings 
 

a. The district conducts IEP meetings within 30 calendar days of the determination that the 
student is eligible for special education and related services. 

 
Page 51



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
2-8 

 

b. The district convenes IEP meetings for each eligible student periodically, but not less than 
once per year. 

c. At IEP meetings, the team reviews and revises the IEP to address any lack of expected 
progress toward annual goals and in the general curriculum, new evaluation data or new 
information from the parent(s), the student’s anticipated needs, or the need to address other 
matters. 

d. Between annual IEP meetings, the district and the parent(s) may amend or modify the 
student’s current IEP without convening an IEP team meeting using the procedures in the 
Agreement to Amend or Modify IEP subsection. 

e. When the parent(s) requests a meeting, the district will either schedule a meeting within a 
reasonable time or provide timely written prior notice of the district’s refusal to hold a 
meeting. 

f. If an agency other than the district fails to provide agreed upon transition services contained in 
the IEP, the district convenes an IEP meeting to plan alternative strategies to meet the 
transition objectives and, if necessary, to revise the IEP. 

 
3. IEP Team Members 
 

a. The district’s IEP team members include the following: 
 

(1) The student’s parent(s); 
(2) The student, if the purpose of the IEP meeting is to consider the student’s postsecondary 

goals and transition services (beginning for IEPs in effect at age 16), or for younger 
students, when appropriate; 

(3) At least one of the student’s special education teachers or, if appropriate, at least one of 
the student’s special education providers; 

(4) At least one of the student’s regular education teachers if the student is or may be 
participating in the regular education environment. If the student has more than one 
regular education teacher, the district will determine which teacher or teachers will 
participate; 

(5) A representative of the district (who may also be another member of the team) who is 
qualified to provide or supervise the provision of special education and is knowledgeable 
about district resources. The representative of the district will have the authority to 
commit district resources and be able to ensure that all services identified in the IEP can 
be delivered; 

(6) An individual, who may also be another member of the team, who can interpret the 
instructional implications of the evaluation results; and 

(7) At the discretion of the parent or district, other persons who have knowledge or special 
expertise regarding the student. 

 
b. Student participation: 

 
(1) Whenever appropriate, the student with a disability is a member of the team. 
(2) If the purpose of the IEP meeting includes consideration of postsecondary goals and 

transition services for the student, the district includes the student in the IEP team 
meeting. 

(3) If the purpose of the IEP meeting includes consideration of postsecondary goals and 
transition services for the student, and the student does not attend the meeting, the 

 
Page 52



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
3-8 

 

district will take other steps to consider the student’s preferences and interests in 
developing the IEP. 

 
c. Participation by other agencies: 

 
(1) With parent or adult student written consent, and where appropriate, the district invites a 

representative of any other agency that is likely to be responsible for providing or paying 
for transition services if the purpose of the IEP meeting includes the consideration of 
transition services (beginning at age 16, or younger if appropriate); and 

(2) If the district refers or places a student in an education service district, state-operated 
program, private school or other educational program, IEP team membership includes a 
representative from the appropriate agencies. Participation may consist of attending the 
meeting, conference call or participating through other means. 

 
4. Agreement for Nonattendance and Excusal 
 

a. The district and the parent may consent to excuse an IEP team member from attending an IEP 
meeting, in whole or in part, when the meeting involves a discussion or modification of team 
member’s area of curriculum or service. The district designates specific individuals to 
authorize excusal of IEP team members. 

b. If excusing an IEP team member whose area is to be discussed at an IEP meeting, the district 
ensures: 

 
(1) The parent and the district consent in writing to the excusal; 
(2) The team member submits written input to the parents and other members of the IEP 

team before the meeting; and 
(3) The parent is informed of all information related to the excusal in the parent’s native 

language or other mode of communication according to consent requirements. 
 
5. IEP Content 
 

a. In developing the IEP, the district considers the student’s strengths, the parent’s concerns, the 
results of the initial or most recent evaluation, and the academic, developmental and functional 
needs of the student. 

b. The district ensures that IEPs for each eligible student includes: 
 

(1) A statement of the student’s present levels of academic achievement and functional 
performance that: 

 
(a) Includes a description of how the disability affects the progress and involvement in 

the general education curriculum; 
(b) Describes the results of any evaluations conducted, including functional and 

developmental information; 
(c) Is written in language that is understood by all IEP team members, including 

parents; 
(d) Is clearly linked to each annual goal statement; 
(e) Includes a description of benchmarks or short-term objectives for children with 

disabilities who take alternative assessments aligned to alternate achievement 
standards. 

 
Page 53



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
4-8 

 

(2) A statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional goals, or for 
students whose performance is measured by alternate assessments aligned to alternate 
achievement standard, statements of measurable goals and short-term objectives. The 
goals and, if appropriate, objectives: 
 
(a) Meet the student’s needs that are present because of the disability, or because of 

behavior that interferes with the student’s ability to learn, or impedes the learning 
of other students; 

(b) Enable the student to be involved in and progress in the general curriculum, as 
appropriate; and 

(c) Clearly describe the anticipated outcomes, including intermediate steps, if 
appropriate, that serve as a measure of progress toward the goal. 

 
(3) A statement of the special education services, related services, supplementary aids and 

services that the district provides to the student: 
 

(a) The district bases special education and related services, modifications and 
supports on peer-reviewed research to the extent practicable to assist students in 
advancing toward goals, progressing in the general curriculum and participating 
with other students (including those without disabilities), in academic, 
nonacademic and extracurricular activities. 

(b) Each statement of special education services, related or supplementary services, 
aids, modifications or supports includes a description of the inclusive dates, 
amount or frequency, location and who is responsible for implementation. 

 
(4) A statement of the extent, if any, to which the student will not participate with 

nondisabled students in regular academic, nonacademic and extracurricular activities. 
(5) A statement of any individual modifications and accommodations in the administration 

of state or districtwide assessments of student achievement. 
 

(a) A student will not be exempt from participation in state or districtwide assessment 
because of a disability unless the parent requests an exemption; 

(b) If the IEP team determines that the student will take the alternate assessment 
instead of the regular statewide or a districtwide assessment, a statement of why 
the student cannot participate in the regular assessment and why the alternate 
assessment is appropriate for the student. 

 
(6) A statement describing how the district will measure student’s progress toward 

completion of the annual goals and when periodic reports on the student’s progress 
toward the annual goals will be provided. 

 
6. Agreement to Amend or Modify IEP 
 

Between annual IEP meetings, the district and the parent may agree to make changes in the student’s 
current IEP without holding an IEP meeting. These changes require a signed, written agreement 
between the district and the parent. 
 

 
Page 54



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
5-8 

 

a. The district and the parent record any amendments, revisions or modifications on the student’s 
current IEP. If additional IEP pages are required these pages must be attached to the existing 
IEP. 

b. The district files a complete copy of the IEP with the student’s education records and informs 
the student’s IEP team and any teachers or service providers of the changes. 

c. The district provides the parent prior written notice of any changes in the IEP and upon 
request, provides the parent with a revised copy of the IEP with the changes incorporated. 

 
7. IEP Team Considerations and Special Factors 
 

a. In developing, reviewing and revising the IEP, the IEP team considers: 
 

(1) The strengths of the student and concerns of the parent for enhancing the education of 
the student; 

(2) The results of the initial or most recent evaluation of the student; 
(3) As appropriate, the results of the student’s performance on any general state or 

districtwide assessments; 
(4) The academic, developmental and functional needs of the child. 

 
b. In developing, reviewing and revising the student’s IEP, the IEP team considers the following 

special factors: 
 

(1) The communication needs of the student; and 
(2) The need for assistive technology services and/or devices. 

 
c. As appropriate, the IEP team also considers the following special factors: 

 
(1) For a student whose behavior impedes his or her their learning or that of others, 

strategies, positive behavioral intervention and supports to address that behavior; 
(2) For a student with limited English proficiency, the language needs of the student as those 

needs relate to the IEP; 
(3) For a student who is blind or visually impaired, instruction in Braille and the use of 

Braille unless the IEP team determines (after an evaluation of reading and writing skills, 
needs and media, including evaluation of future needs for instruction in Braille or the use 
of Braille, appropriate reading and writing), that instruction in Braille or the use of 
Braille is not appropriate; 

(4) For a student who is deaf or hard of hearing, the student’s language and communication 
needs, including opportunities for direct communication with peers and professional 
personnel in the student’s language and communication mode, academic level and full 
range of needs, including opportunities for direct instruction in the student’s language 
and communication mode; and 

(5) If a student is deaf, deafblind, or hard of hearing, the district will provide information 
about relevant services and placements offered by the school district, the education 
service district, regional programs, and the Oregon School for the Deaf; and 

(6) A statement of any device or service needed for the student to receive a free appropriate 
public education (FAPE). 
 

d. In addition to the above IEP contents, the IEP for each eligible student of transition age 
includes: 

 
Page 55



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
6-8 

 

(1) Beginning not later than the first IEP in effect when the student turns 16, or as early as 
14 or younger, if determined appropriate by the IEP team (including parent(s)), and 
updated annually thereafter, the IEP must include: 

 
(a) Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate transition 

assessments related to training education, employment, and where appropriate, 
independent living skills; and 

(b) The transition services (including courses of study) needed to assist the student in 
reaching those goals. 
(i) Regarding employment planning, the parent shall be provided information 

about and opportunities to experience employment services provided by 
Oregon Vocational Rehabilitation or the Oregon Office of Developmental 
Disability Services. These services must be provided in a competitive 
integrated employment setting, as defined by Oregon Administrative Rule 
441-345-0020. Information about these services shall also be provided to the 
parent by the district at each annual review for IEPs to be in effect when the 
child turns 16, or as early as 14 or younger, if determined appropriate by the 
IEP team (including parent(s)). 

(2) At least one year before a student reaches the age of majority (student reaches the age of 
18, or has married or been emancipated, whichever occurs first), a statement that the 
district has informed the student that all procedural rights will transfer at the age of 
majority; and 

(3) If identified transition service providers, other than the district, fail to provide any of the 
services identified on the IEP, the district will initiate an IEP meeting as soon as possible 
to address alternative strategies and revise the IEP if necessary. 
 

e. To promote self-determination and independence, the district shall provide the student and the 
student’s parents with information and training resources regarding supported decision-making 
as a less restrictive alternative to guardianship, and with information and resources regarding 
strategies to remain engaged in the student’s secondary education and post-school outcomes. 
The district shall provide this information at each IEP meeting that includes discussion of post-
secondary education goals and transition services. 

8. Incarcerated Youth 
 

a. For students with disabilities who are convicted as adults, incarcerated in adult correctional 
facilities and otherwise entitled to FAPE, the following IEP requirements do not apply: 

 
(1) Participation of students with disabilities in state and districtwide assessment; and 
(2) Transition planning and transition services, for students whose eligibility will end 

because of their age before they will be eligible to be released from an adult correctional 
facility based on consideration of their sentence and eligibility for early release. 

 
b. The IEP team may modify the student’s IEP, if the state has demonstrated a bona fide security 

or other compelling interest that cannot be otherwise accommodated. 
 
9. Extended School Year Services 
 

 
Page 56



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
7-8 

 

a. The district makes extended school year (ESY) services available to all students for whom the 
IEP team has determined that such services are necessary to provide FAPE. 

b. ESY services are: 
 

(1) Provided to a student with a disability in addition to the services provided during the 
typical school year; 

(2) Identified in the student’s IEP; and 
(3) Provided at no cost to the parent. 

 
c. The district does not limit consideration of ESY services to particular categories of disability 

or unilaterally limit the type, amount or duration of service. 
d. The district provides ESY services to maintain the student’s skills or behavior, but not to teach 

new skills or behaviors. 
e. The district’s criteria for determining the need for extended school year services include: 

 
(1) Regression (a significant loss of skills or behaviors) and recoupment time based on 

documented evidence; or 
(2) If no documented evidence, on predictions according to the professional judgment of the 

team. 
 

f. “Regression” means significant loss of skills or behaviors in any area specified on the IEP as a 
result of an interruption in education services. 

g. “Recoupment” means the recovery of skills or behaviors specified on the IEP to a level 
demonstrated before the interruption of education services. 

 
10. Assistive Technology 
 

a. The district ensures that assistive technology devices or assistive technology services, or both, 
are made available if they are identified as part of the student’s IEP. These services and/or 
devices may be part of the student’s special education, related services or supplementary aids 
and services. 

b. On a case-by-case basis, the district permits the use of district-purchased assistive technology 
devices in the student’s home or in other settings if the student’s IEP team determines that the 
student needs access to those devices to receive a free appropriate public education. In these 
situations, district policy will govern liability and transfer of the device when the student 
ceases to attend the district. 

 
11. Transfer Students 
 

a. In state: 
 

If a student with a disability (who had an IEP that was in effect in a previous district in 
Oregon) transfers into the district and enrolls in a district school within the same school year, 
the district (in consultation with the student’s parents) provides a free appropriate public 
education to the student (including services comparable to those described in the student’s IEP 
from the previous district), until the district either: 

 
(1) Adopts the student’s IEP from the previous district; or 

 
Page 57



R1/14/161/19/22 | RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF-AR 
8-8 

 

(2) Develops, adopts and implements a new IEP for the student in accordance with all of the 
IEP provisions. 

 
b. Out of state: 

 
If a student transfers into the district with a current IEP from a district in another state, the 
district, in consultation with the student’s parents, will provide a free appropriate public 
education to the student, including services comparable to those described in the student’s IEP 
from the previous district, until the district: 

 
(1) Conducts an initial evaluation (if determined necessary by the district to determine 

Oregon eligibility) with parent consent and determines whether the student meets 
eligibility criteria described in Oregon Administrative Rules. 

(2) If the student is eligible under Oregon criteria, the district develops, adopts and 
implements a new IEP for the student using the Oregon Standard IEP or an approved 
alternate IEP. 

(3) If the student does not meet Oregon eligibility criteria, the district provides prior written 
notice to the parents explaining that the student does not meet Oregon eligibility criteria 
and specifying the date when special education services will be terminated. 

 
Page 58



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
1-11 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGBAG-AR 
Adopted:  
 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** 
 
1. Procedural Safeguards 

a. The district provides procedural safeguards to: 

(1) Parents, guardians (unless the guardian is a state agency) or persons in parental 
relationship to the student; 

(2) Surrogate parents; and 
(3) Students who have reached the age of 18, the age of majority or are considered 

emancipated under Oregon law and to whom rights have transferred by statute, identified 
as adult students (called “eligible students”). 

b. The district gives parents a copy of the Procedural Safeguards Notice, published by the 
Oregon Department of Education (ODE): 

(1) At least once a year; 
(2) At the first referral or parental request for evaluation to determine eligibility for special 

education services; 
(3) When the parent (or adult student) requests a copy; and 
(4) To the parent and the student one year before the student’s 18th birthday or upon 

learning that the student is emancipated. 

c. The Procedural Safeguards Notice is: 

(1) Provided written in the native language or other communication of the parents (unless it 
is clearly not feasible to do so) and in language clearly understandable to the public. 

(2) If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written 
language, the district takes steps to ensure that: 

(a) The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in his/her their 
native language or other mode of communication; 

(b) The parent understands the content of the notice; and 
(c) There is written evidence that the district has met these requirements. 

2. Content of Procedural Safeguards Notice 

The procedural safeguards notice includes all of the content provided in the Procedural Safeguards 
Notice published by ODE. 

3. Parent or Adult Student Meeting Participation 

a. The district provides parents or adult students an opportunity to participate in meetings with 
respect to the identification, evaluation, individualized education program (IEP) and 

 
Page 59



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
2-11 

 

educational placement of the student, and the provision of a free appropriate public education 
(FAPE) to the student. 

b. The district provides parents or adult students written notice of any meeting sufficiently in 
advance to ensure an opportunity to attend. The written notice: 

(1) States the purpose, time and place of the meeting and who is invited to attend; 
(2) Advises that parents or adult students may invite other individuals who they believe have 

knowledge or special expertise regarding the student; 
(3) Advises the parents or adult student that the team may proceed with the meeting even if 

they are not in attendance; 
(4) Advises the parent or adult students who to contact before the meeting to provide 

information if they are unable to attend; and 
(5) Indicates if one of the meeting’s purposes is to consider transition services or transition 

service needs. If so: 

(a) Indicates that the student will be invited; and 
(b) Identifies any agencies invited to send a representative. 

c. The district takes steps to ensure that one or both of the parents of a student with a disability 
are present at each IEP or placement meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate, 
including: 

(1) Notifying parents of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have an 
opportunity to attend; and 

(2) Scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed on time and place. 

d. If neither parent can participate, the district will use other methods to ensure participation, 
including, but not limited to, individual or conference phone calls or home visits. 

e. The district may conduct an evaluation planning or eligibility meeting without the parent or 
adult student if the district provided meeting notice to the parent or adult student sufficiently in 
advance to ensure an opportunity to attend. 

f. The district may conduct an IEP or placement meeting without the parent or adult student if 
the district is unable to convince the parents or adult students that they should participate. 
Attempts to convince the parent to participate will be considered sufficient if the district: 

(1) Communicates directly with the parent or adult student and arranges a mutually 
agreeable time and place and sends written notice to confirm the arrangement; or 

(2) Proposes a time and place in the written notice stating that a different time and place 
might be requested and confirms that the notice was received. 

g. If the district proceeds with an IEP meeting without a parent or adult student, the district must 
have a record of its attempts to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place such as: 

(1) Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls; 
(2) Copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses received; and 
(3) Detailed records of visits made to the parents’ home or place of employment and the 

results of those visits. 

 
Page 60



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
3-11 

 

h. The district takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parent or adult student 
understands the proceedings at a meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents or 
adult students who are deaf or whose native language is other than English. 

i. After the transfer of rights to an adult student at the age of majority, the district provides 
written notice of meetings to the adult student and parent, if the parent can be reasonably 
located. After the transfer of rights to an adult student at the age of majority, a parent receiving 
notice of an IEP meeting is not entitled to attend the meeting unless invited by the adult 
student or the district. 

j. An IEP meeting does not include: 

(1) Informal or unscheduled conversations involving district personnel; 
(2) Conversations on issues such as teaching methodology, lesson plans or coordination of 

service provision if those issues are not addressed in the student’s IEP; or 
(3) Preparatory activities that district or public personnel engage in to develop a proposal or 

response to a parent proposal that will be discussed at a later meeting. 

4. Surrogate Parents 

a. The district protects the rights of a student with a disability, or suspected of having a disability, 
by appointing a surrogate parent when: 

(1) The parent cannot be identified or located after reasonable efforts; 
(2) The student is a ward of the state or an unaccompanied homeless youth and there is 

reasonable cause to believe that the student has a disability, and there is no foster parent 
or other person available who can act as the parent of the student; or 

(3) The parent or adult student requests the appointment of a surrogate parent. 

b. The district secures nominations of persons to serve as surrogates. The district appoints 
surrogates within 30 days of a determination that the student needs a surrogate, unless a 
surrogate has already been appointed by juvenile court. 

c. The district will only appoint a surrogate who: 

(1) Is not an employee of the district or ODE; 
(2) Is not an employee of any other agency involved in the education or care of the student; 
(3) Is free of any personal or professional interest that would interfere with representing the 

student’s special education interests; and 
(4) Has the necessary knowledge and skills that ensure adequate representation of the 

student in special education decisions. The district will provide training, as necessary, to 
ensure that surrogate parents have the requisite knowledge. 

d. The district provides all special education rights and procedural safeguards to appointed 
surrogate parents. 

e. A surrogate will not be considered an employee of the district solely on the basis that the 
surrogate is compensated from public funds. 

f. The duties of the surrogate parent are to: 

(1) Protect the special education rights of the student; 
(2) Be acquainted with the student’s disability and the student’s special education needs; 

  

 
Page 61



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
4-11 

 

(3) Represent the student in all matters relating to the identification, evaluation, IEP and 
educational placement of the student; and 

(4) Represent the student in all matters relating to the provision of FAPE to the student. 

g. A parent may give written consent for a surrogate to be appointed. 

(1) When a parent requests that a surrogate be appointed, the parent shall retain all parental 
rights to receive notice and all of the information provided to the surrogate. When the 
district appoints a surrogate at parent request, the district will continue to provide to the 
parent a copy of all notices and other information provided to the surrogate. 

(2) The surrogate, alone, shall be responsible for all matters relating to the special education 
of the student. The district will treat the surrogate as the parent unless and until the 
parent revokes consent for the surrogate’s appointment. 

(3) If a parent gives written consent for a surrogate to be appointed, the parent may revoke 
consent at any time by providing a written request to revoke the surrogate’s 
appointment. 

h. An adult student to whom rights have transferred at age of majority may give written consent 
for a surrogate to be appointed. When an adult student requests that a surrogate be appointed, 
the student shall retain all rights to receive notice and all of the information provided to the 
surrogate. The surrogate, alone, shall be responsible for all matters relating to the special 
education of the student. The district will treat the surrogate as the adult student unless and 
until the adult student revokes consent for the surrogate’s appointment. If an adult student 
gives written consent for a surrogate to be appointed, the adult student may revoke consent at 
any time by providing a written request to revoke the surrogate’s appointment. 

i. The district may change or terminate the appointment of a surrogate when: 

(1) The person appointed as surrogate is no longer willing to serve; 
(2) Rights transfer to the adult student or the student graduates with a regular diploma; 
(3) The student is no longer eligible for special education services; 
(4) The legal guardianship of the student is transferred to a person who is able to carry out 

the role of the parent; 
(5) A foster parent or other person is identified who can carry out the role of parent; 
(6) The parent, who previously could not be identified or located, is now identified or 

located; 
(7) The appointed surrogate is no longer eligible; 
(8) The student moves to another district; or 
(9) The student is no longer a ward of the state or unaccompanied homeless youth. 

j. The district will not appoint a surrogate solely because the parent or student to whom rights 
have transferred is uncooperative or unresponsive to the special education needs of the student. 

5. Transfer of Rights at Age of Majority 

a. When a student with a disability reaches the age of majority, marries or is emancipated, rights 
previously accorded to the student’s parents under the special education laws, transfer to the 
student. A student for whom rights have transferred is considered an “adult student” under 
OAR 581-015-2000(1). 

 
Page 62



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
5-11 

 

b. The district provides notice to the student and the parent that rights (accorded by statute) will 
transfer at the age of majority. This notice is provided at an IEP meeting and documented on 
the IEP: 

(1) At least one year before the student’s 18th birthday; 
(2) More than one year before the student’s 18th birthday, if the student’s IEP team 

determines that earlier notice will aid transition; or 
(3) Upon actual knowledge that within a year the student will likely marry or become 

emancipated before age 18. 

c. The district provides written notice to the student and to the parent at the time of the transfer. 
d. These requirements apply to all students, including students who are incarcerated in a state or 

local adult or juvenile correctional facility or jail. 
e. After transfer of rights to the student, the district provides any written prior notices and written 

notices of meetings required by the special education laws to the adult student and to the 
parent if the parent can be reasonably located. 

f. After rights have transferred to the student, receipt of notice of an IEP meeting does not entitle 
the parent to attend the meeting unless invited by the student or the district. 

g. To promote self-determination and independence, the district shall provide the student and the 
student’s parents with information and training resources regarding supported decision-making 
as a less restrictive alternative to guardianship, and with information and resources regarding 
strategies to remain engaged in the student’s secondary education and post-school outcomes. 
The district shall provide this information at each IEP meeting that includes discussion of post-
secondary goals and transition services. 

6. Prior Written Notice 

a. The district provides prior written notice to the parent of a student, or student, within a 
reasonable period of time, before the district: 

(1) Proposes to initiate or change, the identification, evaluation or educational placement of 
the student, or the provision of a FAPE to the child; or 

(2) Refuses to initiate or change the identification, evaluation or educational placement of 
the student, or the provision of a FAPE to the child. 

b. The content of the prior written notice will include: 

(1) A description of the action proposed or refused by the district; 
(2) An explanation of why the district proposed or refused to take the action; 
(3) A description of each evaluation procedure, test, assessment, record or report used as a 

basis for the proposal or refusal; 
(4) A statement that the parents of a student with a disability have procedural safeguards 

and, if this notice is not an initial referral for evaluation, how a copy of the Procedural 
Safeguards Notice may be obtained; 

(5) Sources for parents to contact to obtain assistance in understanding their procedural 
safeguards; 

(6) A description of other options the IEP team considered and the reasons why those 
options were rejected; and 

(7) A description of other factors that are relevant to the agency’s proposal or refusal. 

 
Page 63



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
6-11 

 

c. The prior written notice is: 

(1) Written in language understandable to the general public; and 
(2) Provided in the native language of the parent or other mode of communication used by 

the parent, unless it is clearly not feasible to do so; 
(3) If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written 

language, the district shall take steps to ensure that: 

(a) The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in the parent’s native 
language or other mode of communication; 

(b) The parent understands the content of the notice; and 
(c) There is written evidence that the requirements of this rule have been met. 

7. Consent1 – Initial Evaluation 

a. The district provides notice and obtains informed written consent from the parent or adult 
student before conducting an initial evaluation to determine whether a student has a disability 
(as defined by Oregon law) and needs special education. Consent for initial evaluation is not 
consent for the district to provide special education and related services. 

b. The district makes reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent from a parent for an initial 
evaluation to determine a child’s eligibility for special education services. If a parent does not 
provide consent for an initial evaluation or does not respond to a request for consent for an 
initial evaluation, the district may, but is not required to, pursue the initial evaluation of the 
child through mediation or due process hearing procedures. The district does not violate its 
child find obligations if it declines to pursue the evaluation using these procedures. 

8. Consent – Initial Provision of Special Education Services 

a. The district provides notice and obtains informed written consent from the parent or adult 
student before the initial provision of special education and related services to the student. 

b. The district makes reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent, but if a parent or adult 
student does not respond or refuses consent for initial provision of special education and 
related services, the district does not convene an IEP meeting, develop an IEP or seek to 
provide special education and related services through mediation or due process hearing 
procedures. The district will not be considered to be in violation of the requirement to make 
FAPE available to the student under these circumstances. The district stands ready to serve the 
student if the parent or adult student later consents. 

9. Consent – Re-evaluation 

a. The district obtains informed parent consent before conducting any re-evaluation of a child 
with a disability, except: 

                                                 
1 “Consent” means that the parent or adult student: a) has been fully informed, in his/her their native language or other mode of 
communication, of all information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought; and b) understands and agrees in writing 
to the carrying out of the activity for which his/her their consent is sought. Consent is voluntary on the part of the parent and 
meeting the requirements of consent provision for OAR 581-015-2090, IDEA and Family Education Rights and Privacy Act 
(FERPA). 

 
Page 64



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
7-11 

 

(1) The district does not need written consent for a re-evaluation if the parent does not 
respond after reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent. However, the district does 
not conduct individual intelligence tests or tests of personality without consent. 

(2) If a parent refuses to consent to the re-evaluation, the district may, but is not required to, 
pursue the re-evaluation by using mediation or due process hearing procedures. 

b. A parent or adult student may revoke consent at any time before the completion of the activity 
for which they have given consent. If a parent or adult student revokes consent, that revocation 
is not retroactive. 

10. Consent – Other Requirements 

a. The district documents its reasonable efforts to obtain parent consent, such as phone calls, 
letters and meeting notes. 

b. If a parent of a student who is home schooled or enrolled by the parents in a private school 
does not provide consent for the initial evaluation or the re-evaluation, or if the parent does not 
respond to a request for consent, the district: 

(1) Does not use mediation or due process hearing procedures to seek consent; and 
(2) Does not consider the child as eligible for special education services. 

c. If a parent or adult student refuses consent for one service or activity, the district does not use 
this refusal to deny the parent or child any other service, benefit or activity, except as specified 
by these rules and procedures. 

d. If, at any time subsequent to the initial provision of special and related services, the parent of a 
child revokes consent in writing for the continued provision of special education and related 
services, the district: 

(1) May not continue to provide special education and related services to the child, but must 
provide prior written notice before ceasing the provision of special education and related 
services; 

(2) May not use mediation or due process procedures to obtain an agreement or ruling that 
the services may be provided to the child; 

(3) The district will not be considered to be in violation of the requirement to make FAPE 
available to the child because of the failure to provide the child with further special 
education and related services; and 

(4) The district is not required to convene an IEP team meeting or develop an IEP for the 
child for further provision of special education or related services. 

11. Exceptions to Consent 

a. The district does not need written parent or adult student consent before: 

(1) Reviewing existing data as part of an evaluation or re-evaluation; 
(2) Administering a test or other evaluation administered to all students without consent 

unless, before administration of that test or evaluation, consent is required of parents of 
all students; 

(3) Conducting evaluations, tests, procedures or instruments that are identified on the 
student’s individualized education program (IEP) as a measure for determining progress; 
or 

 
Page 65



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
8-11 

 

(4) Conducting a screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate 
instructional strategies for curriculum implementation. 

b. The district does not need written parent consent to conduct an initial special education 
evaluation of a student who is a ward of the state and not living with the parent if: 

(1) Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the district has not been able to find the parent; 
(2) The parent’s rights have been terminated in accordance with state law; or 
(3) The rights of the parent to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a judge 

in accordance with state law and consent for an initial evaluation has been given by an 
individual appointed by the judge to represent the child. 

c. The district does not need written parental consent if an administrative law judge (ALJ) 
determines that the evaluation or re-evaluation is necessary to ensure that the student is 
provided with a free appropriate public education. 

12. Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE) 

a. A parent of a student with a disability has a right to an independent educational evaluation at 
public expense if the parent disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the district. 

b. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation at public expense, the district 
provides information to parents about where an independent educational evaluation may be 
obtained, and the district criteria applicable for independent educational evaluations. 

c. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation at public expense, the district, 
without unnecessary delay, either: 

(1) Initiates a due process hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate; or 
(2) Ensures that an independent educational evaluation is provided at public expense unless 

the district demonstrates in a hearing that the evaluation obtained by the parent did not 
meet district criteria. 

d. The district criteria for independent educational evaluations are the same as for district 
evaluations including, but not limited to, location, examiner qualifications and cost. 

(1) Criteria established by the district do not preclude the parent’s access to an independent 
educational evaluation. 

(2) The district provides the parents the opportunity to demonstrate the unique 
circumstances justifying an IEE that does not meet the district’s criteria. 

(3) A parent may be limited to one independent educational evaluation at public expense 
each time the district conducts an evaluation with which the parent disagrees. 

e. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation, the district may ask why the parent 
disagrees with the public evaluation. The parent may, but is not required to provide an 
explanation. The district may not: 

(1) Unreasonably delay either providing the independent educational evaluation at public 
expense or initiating a due process hearing to defend the public evaluation; 

(2) Except for the criteria listed above in c., impose conditions or timelines related to 
obtaining an IEE at public expense. 

 
Page 66



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
9-11 

 

f. The district considers an independent educational evaluation submitted by the parent, in any 
decision made with respect to the provision of a free appropriate public education to the 
student, if the submitted independent evaluation meets district criteria. 

13. Dispute Resolution – Mediation 

a. The district or parent may request mediation from ODE for any special education matter, 
including before the filing of a complaint or due process hearing request. 

b. The district acknowledges that: 

(1) Mediation must be voluntary on the part of the parties, must be conducted by a qualified 
and impartial mediator who is trained in effective mediation techniques and may not be 
used to deny or delay a parent’s right to a due process hearing or filing a complaint. 

(2) Each mediation session must be scheduled in a timely manner and must be held in a 
location that is convenient to the parties to the dispute. 

(3) An agreement reached by the parties to the dispute in the mediation process must be set 
forth in a legally binding written mediation agreement that: 

(a) States the terms of the agreement; 
(b) States that all discussions that occurred during the mediation process remain 

confidential and may not be used as evidence in any subsequent due process 
hearing or civil proceeding; and 

(c) Is signed by the parent and a representative of the district who has the authority to 
bind the district to the mediation agreement. 

(4) Mediation communication is not confidential if it relates to child or elder abuse and is 
made to a person who is required to report abuse, or threats of physical harm, or 
professional conduct affecting licensure. 

(5) The mediation agreement is enforceable in any state court of competent jurisdiction or in 
a district court of the United States. 

14. Dispute Resolution – Complaint Investigation 

a. Any organization or person may file a signed, written complaint with the State Superintendent 
of Public Instruction alleging that a district or education service district (ESD) is violating or 
has violated the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) or associated regulations 
within one year before the date of the complaint. Upon receiving a parent complaint, the ODE 
forwards the complaint to the district or ESD along with a request for a district response to the 
allegations in the complaint. 

b. Upon receiving a request for response from ODE, the district responds to the allegations and 
furnishes any requested information or documents within 10 business days. 

c. The district sends a copy of the response to the complainant. If ODE decides to conduct an on-
site investigation, district personnel participate in interviews and provide additional documents 
as needed. 

d. The district and the complainant may attempt to resolve a disagreement that led to a complaint 
through mediation. If they decide against mediation, or if mediation fails to produce an 
agreement, ODE will pursue the complaint investigation. 

e. If ODE substantiates some or all of the allegations in a complaint, it will order corrective 
action. The district satisfies its corrective action obligations in a timely manner. 

 
Page 67



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
10-11 

 

f. If the district disagrees with the findings and conclusions in a complaint final order, it may 
seek reconsideration by ODE or judicial review in county circuit court. 

15. Due Process Hearing Requests 

a. The district acknowledges that parents may request a due process hearing if they disagree with 
a district proposal or refusal relating to the identification, evaluation, educational placement or 
provision of a free appropriate education to a student who may have a disability and be eligible 
for special education. 

b. The district may request a due process hearing regarding the identification, evaluation, 
educational placement or provision of a free appropriate education to a student who may have 
a disability and be eligible for special education. 

c. When requesting a due process hearing, the district or the attorney representing the district 
provides notice to the parent and to ODE. 

d. The party, including the district, that did not file the hearing request must, within 10 days of 
receiving the request for a hearing, send to the other party a response that specifically 
addresses the issues raised in the hearing request. 

e. If the parent had not yet received prior written notice of the district’s proposal or refusal, the 
district, within 10 days of receiving the hearing request for a due process hearing, sends to the 
parent a response that includes: 

(1) An explanation of why the district proposed or refused to take the action raised in the 
hearing request; 

(2) A description of other options that the district considered and the reasons why those 
options were rejected; 

(3) A description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record or report the district used 
as the basis for the proposed or refused action; and 

(4) A description of the factors relevant to the district’s proposal or refusal. 

16. Resolution Session 

a. Within 15 days of receiving a due process hearing request, the district will hold a resolution 
session with the parents and the relevant members of the IEP team who have specific 
knowledge of the facts identified in the due process hearing request. 

b. This meeting will include a representative of the district who has decision-making authority 
for the district. 

(1) The district will not include an attorney unless the parent brings an attorney. 
(2) The district will provide the parent with an opportunity for the parent to discuss the 

hearing request and related facts so that the district has an opportunity to resolve the 
dispute. 

(3) The district and parent may agree in writing to waive the resolution meeting. If so, the 
45-day hearing timeline will begin the next business day, unless the district and parent 
agree to try mediation in lieu of the resolution session. 

17. Time Limitations and Exception 

a. A parent must request a due process hearing within two years after the date of the district act 
or omission that gives rise to the parent’s hearing request. 

 
Page 68



R6/21/181/19/22│RS Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** – IGBAG-AR 
11-11 

 

b. This timeline does not apply to a parent if the district withheld relevant information from the 
parent or incorrectly informed the parent that it had resolved the problem that led the parent’s 
hearing request. 

18. Hearing Costs 

a. The district reimburses ODE for costs related to conducting the hearing, including pre-hearing 
conferences, scheduling arrangement and other related matters. 

b. The district provides the parent with a written or, at the option of the parent, an electronic 
verbatim recording of the hearing, within a reasonable time of the close of the hearing 

c. The district does not use IDEA funds to pay attorney’s fees or other hearing costs. 

19. Discipline and Placement in Interim Alternative Setting 

See Board policy JGDA - Discipline of Students with Disabilities. 

 
Page 69



R1/19/22│RS Talented and Gifted Program – IGBB 
1-1 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGBB 
Adopted:  
 

Talented and Gifted Program 
 
The district is committed to an educational program that recognizes, identifies and serves the unique needs 
of talented and gifted students. Talented and gifted students are those who have been identified as 
academically talented and/or intellectually gifted. 
 
The Board directs the superintendent to develop a written identification process for identifying 
academically talented and intellectually gifted students in grades K through 12. 
 
A written plan shall be developed that identifies programs or services needed to address the assessed levels 
of learning and accelerated rates of learning of identified students and provides an opportunity for the 
student’s parents to discuss with the district the programs and services available to the student and to 
provide input on the programs and services to be made available to the student. 
 
The plan will be provided at the school or the district office when requested and on the district’s website. 
The website shall also provide the name and contact information of the district’s coordinator of special 
education and programs for talented and gifted. 
 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 343.391-343.401 ORS 343.407-343.413 
 
OAR 581-022-2325 OAR 581-022-2330 OAR 581-022-2500 
 
SB 486(2021 

 
Page 70

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R7/01/1710/05/21│PHLF 
 

Alternative Education Programs** – IGBHA 
1-1 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGBHA 
Adopted:  
 

Alternative Education Programs** 
 
The Board is dedicated to providing educational options for all students. It is recognized there will be 
students in the district whose needs and interests are best served by participation in an alternative 
education program. 

“Alternative education program” means a school or separate class group designed to best serve students’ 
educational needs and interests and assist students in achieving the academic standards of the school 
district and the state. 

A list of alternative education programs will be approved by the Board annually. The superintendent may 
provide for the involvement of staff, parents or guardians and the community in recommending alternative 
education programs for Board approval, and in the development of related Board policy and an 
administrative regulation. Annual evaluation of alternative education programs will be made in accordance 
with Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 336.655 and Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2505. The 
superintendent will develop administrative regulations as necessary to evaluate the district’s alternative 
education programs. 

Alternative education programs will consist of instruction or instruction combined with counseling. These 
programs may be public or private. A private alternative education program shall be registered with the 
Oregon Department of Education. Alternative education programs must meet all the requirements set forth 
in state law and rules, and federal law, as applicable. A qualified district may contract with a qualified 
private alternative education program to provide services to a qualified home-schooled child. 

Students, upon approval fromafter consultation with a parent or guardian, may be placed in an alternative 
education program if the district determines that the placement serves the student’s educational needs and 
interests, and assists the student in achieving district and state academic content standards. Such placement 
must have the approval of the student’s resident district and, as appropriate, the attending district. The 
district will also consider and propose alternative education programs for students prior to expulsion or 
leaving school as required by law. 

The district shall pay the actual cost of an alternative education program or an amount equal to 80 percent 
of the district’s estimated current year’s average per-student net operating expenditure, whichever is less. 
The district will enter into a written contract for a district-approved private alternative education programs, 
as required by When contracting with a private alternative education program, the district’s contract will 
meet the requirements of law. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.485 
ORS 332.072 
ORS 336.014 
ORS 336.175 
ORS 336.615 - 336.665 
ORS 339.030 

ORS 339.250 
 
OAR 581-021-0045 
OAR 581-021-0065 
OAR 581-021-0070 
OAR 581-021-0071 

OAR 581-022-2320 
OAR 581-022-2505 
OAR 581-023-0006 
OAR 581-023-0008

 

 
Page 71

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R7/01/1710/05/21│PHLF Evaluation of Alternative Education Programs – IGBHA-AR(1) 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGBHA-AR(1) 
Adopted:  
 

Evaluation of Alternative Education Programs 
(For use by the alternative education program coordinator) 

 
Date   

 
Dear Alternative Education Program Coordinator: 
 
In accordance with Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2505, the district is required to evaluate 
alternative education programs annually. Please provide the documentation required below and return to 
the Assistant Superintendent at the District office at 485 S. 5th Street, Lebanon, Oregon, no later than April 
1st. Please include the program name, program coordinator and telephone number. A copy of the district’s 
written evaluation shall be provided to the program coordinator. 
 
Staff 
 
1. Have criminal records checks requirements been met? 

* Provide list of individuals subject to criminal records checks and copy of Form 581-2283-M from 
the Oregon Department of Education (ODE). 

 
Curriculum 
 
1. Are students receiving instruction in the state academic content standards and earning diploma 

credits? 

* Attach supportive documentation including such evidence as program overview, curriculum guide, 
course syllabi or other material that demonstrates that program curriculum is aligned with standards. 

 
2. Are Oregon Sstatewide Aassessments administered and the results reported annually to students, 

parents and the district? 

* Attach copy of summary report and sample of information reported to student, parents and the 
district. 

 
3. Are students receiving, at least annually, a report of academic progress? 

* Attach copy of report used. 
 
4. Does the program meet the physical education requirements of Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 

329.496? 

* Attach the document that supports the physical education requirements. 
 
  

 
Page 72



R7/01/1710/05/21│PHLF Evaluation of Alternative Education Programs – IGBHA-AR(1) 
2-2 

 

Discrimination 
 
1. Does the program comply with nondiscrimination requirements of law? (Program does not 

discriminate based on age, disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, race, color, 
marital status, religion or sex) 

* Attach student enrollment/withdrawal summary based on above criteria. 
 
Registration (Private alternative education programs only) 
 
1. Is the program registered with the ODE? 

* Attach copy of the approval from ODE (including the institution identification number assigned by 
ODE). 

 
Site Evaluation 
 
1. Does the program comply with health and safety statutes and rules? 

* Attach copy of appropriate documentation, including first aid, and emergency procedures plan, 
healthy and safe schools plan, radon testing plan, such as staff/student handbooks, in-service agenda, 
plans, fire marshal’s report, safety inspection reports, etc. 

 
Tuition and Fees 
 
1. Does the program comply with Oregon Revised Statutes regarding tuition and fees (ORS 337.150, 

339.141, 339.147, 339.155)? 

* Attach list of any fees required and explanation. 
 
Contract 
 
1. The program complies with any statute, rule or district policy specified in the contract with the 

[public or] private alternative education program. 
* Attach as applicable. 
 
2. Does the contract with the [public or] private alternative education program state that noncompliance 

with a rule or statute may result in termination of the contract? 
* Contract on file with district and program, as applicable. 
 
Expenditures 
 
1. Does the program comply with Oregon Revised Statutes regarding expenditures (ORS 336.635(4))? 
* Attach annual statement of expenditures. 
 
Advertising 
 
1. Does the program meet the advertising requirements of ORS 339.122? 
* Attach a copy of the program description. Is it a virtual public school and is it advertised as such? 
 
    
Superintendent Dated 
 
* Compliance indicators are intended as examples only. District may modify, as appropriate. 

 
Page 73



R7/18/1910/05/21│RS Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen 
Dating Violence, or Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 

1-5 
 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: JFCF 
Adopted:  
 
[Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen Dating 

Violence, or Domestic Violence – Student** 
(Version 2) 

 
The Board, in its commitment to providing a safe, positive, and productive learning environment for all 
students, will consult with parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, students, administrators, and 
community representatives in developing this policy in compliance with applicable Oregon law. 

Hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, and acts of cyberbullying by students, staff, or 
third parties toward students is strictly prohibited in the district. Teen dating violence is unacceptable 
behavior and prohibited. Each student has the right to a safe learning environment. 

Retaliation against any person who is a victim of, who reports, is thought to have reported, or files a 
complaint about an act of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, an act of cyberbullying, 
or teen dating violence, or otherwise participates in an investigation or inquiry is strictly prohibited. A 
person who engages in retaliatory behavior will be subject to consequences and appropriate remedial 
action. False charges shall also be regarded as a serious offense and will result in consequences and 
appropriate remedial action. 

Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and 
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including expulsion.  

Staff whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and 
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including dismissal. Third parties 
whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as 
determined and imposed by the superintendent or the Board. 

Students, staff, or third parties may also be referred to law enforcement officials. 

The administrator and the superintendent are responsible for ensuring that this policy is implemented. 

Definitions 

“District” includes district facilities, district premises, and nondistrict property if the student is at any 
district-sponsored, district-approved, or district-related activity or function, such as field trips or athletic 
events where students are under the jurisdiction of the district. 

“Third parties” include, but are not limited to, coaches, school volunteers, parents, school visitors, service 
contractors, or others engaged in district business, such as employees of businesses or organizations 
participating in cooperative work programs with the district and others not directly subject to district 
control at interdistrict and intradistrict athletic competitions or other school events. 

 

 
Page 74



R7/18/1910/05/21│RS Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen 
Dating Violence, or Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 

2-5 
 

“Hazing” includes, but is not limited to, any act that recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental 
health, physical health or safety of a student for the purpose of initiation or as a condition or precondition 
of attaining membership in, or affiliation with, any district-sponsored activity or grade level attainment, 
(i.e., personal servitude, sexual stimulation/sexual assault, forced consumption of any drink, alcoholic 
beverage, drug or controlled substance, forced exposure to the elements, forced prolonged exclusion from 
social contact, sleep deprivation or any other forced activity that could adversely affect the mental or 
physical health or safety of a student); requires, encourages, authorizes or permits another to be subject to 
wearing or carrying any obscene or physically burdensome article; or assignment of pranks to be 
performed or other such activities intended to degrade or humiliate. It is not a defense against hazing that 
the student subjected to hazing consented to or appeared to consent to the hazing. 

“Harassment, intimidation or bullying” means any act that substantially interferes with a student’s 
educational benefits, opportunities or performance, that takes place on or immediately adjacent to district 
grounds, at any district-sponsored activity, on district-provided transportation, or at any official district bus 
stop, that may be based on, but not limited to, the protected class status of a person, and having the effect 
of: 

1. Physically harming a student or damaging a student’s property; 

2. Knowingly placing a student in reasonable fear of physical harm to the student or damage to the 
student’s property; or 

3. Creating a hostile educational environment including interfering with the psychological well-being 
of the student. 

“Protected class” means a group of persons distinguished, or perceived to be distinguished, by race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation1, gender identity, national origin, marital status, familial status, source of 
income, or disability. 
 
“Teen dating violence” means: 
 
1. A pattern of behavior in which a person uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse 

to control another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons 
are 13 to 19 years of age; or 

2. Behavior by which a person uses or threatens to use sexual violence against another person who is in 
a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age. 

“Domestic violence” means abuse between family and/or household members, as those terms are 
described in ORS 107.705. 

“Cyberbullying” is the use of any electronic communication device to harass, intimidate or bully. 

“Retaliation” means any acts of, including but not limited to, hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, 
menacing, or cyberbullying toward the victim, a person in response to an actual or apparent reporting of, 
                                                 
1 “Sexual orientation” means an individual’s actual or perceived heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality or gender identity, 
regardless of whether the individual’s gender identity, appearance, expression or behaviors differs from that traditionally 
associated with the individual’s sex at birth. 

 
Page 75



R7/18/1910/05/21│RS Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen 
Dating Violence, or Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 

3-5 
 

or participation in the investigation of, hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, teen dating 
violence, acts of cyberbullying, or retaliation. 

“Menacing” includes, any act intended to place a district employee, student, or third party in fear of 
imminent serious physical injury. 

Reporting 

The administrator will take reports and conduct a prompt investigation of any reported acts of hazing, 
harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, cyberbullying, or teen dating violence. Any employee 
who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy shall immediately report concerns to the 
administrator who has overall responsibility for all investigations. Any employee who has knowledge of 
incidents of teen dating violence that took place on district property, at a district-sponsored activity, or in a 
vehicle used for district-provided transportation shall immediately report the incident to the administrator.  
Failure of an employee to report any act of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, 
cyberbullying, or teen dating violence to the administrator may be subject to remedial action, up to and 
including dismissal. Remedial action may not be based solely on an anonymous report. 

Any student who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy or feels they have been subjected to 
an act of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, or cyberbullying or feel they have been a 
victim of teen dating violence in violation of this policy, is encouraged to immediately report concerns to 
the administrator who has overall responsibility for all investigations. Any volunteer who has knowledge 
of conduct in violation of this policy is encouraged to immediately report concerns to the administrator. A 
report made by a student or volunteer may be made anonymously. A student or volunteer may also report 
concerns to a teacher or counselor who will be responsible for notifying the appropriate district official. 

Reports against the principal shall be filed with the superintendent. Reports against the superintendent 
shall be filed with the Board chair. 

The person who makes the report shall be notified when the investigation has been completed and, as 
appropriate, the findings of the investigation and any remedial action that has been taken. The person who 
made the report may request that the superintendent review the actions taken in the initial investigation, in 
accordance with administrative regulations. 

Notification to Parents or Guardians 

The administrator shall notify the parents or guardians of a student who was subject to an act of 
harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying, and the parents or guardians of a student who may 
have conducted an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying.  

The notification must occur with involvement and consideration of the needs and concerns of the student 
who was the subject to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying. The notification is 
not required if the administrator reasonably believes notification could endanger the student who was 
subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying or if all of the following occur: 

1. The student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyberbullying 
requests that notification not be provided to the student’s parents or guardians. 

 
Page 76



R7/18/1910/05/21│RS Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen 
Dating Violence, or Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 

4-5 
 

2. The administrator determines that notification is not in the best interest of the student who was 
subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyberbullying; and 

3. The administrator informs the student that federal law may require the student’s parents and 
guardians to have access to the student’s education record, including any requests of nondisclosure 
(from item 1 above). 

If the administrator determines the notification is not in the best interest of the student, they must inform 
the student of that determination prior to providing notification. 
 
When notification is provided, the notification must occur: 

1. Within a reasonable period of time; or  

2. Promptly, for acts that caused physical harm to the student. 

Training and Education 
 
The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for students, information related to the 
prevention of, and the appropriate response to, acts of harassment, intimidation or bullying, and acts of 
cyberbullying and this policy. 

The district shall incorporate age-appropriate education about teen dating violence and domestic violence 
into new or existing training programs for students in grades 7 through 12. 
 
The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for staff information related to the prevention 
of, and the appropriate response to, acts of harassment, intimidation or bullying, teen dating violence, 
domestic violence, and acts of cyberbullying and this policy. 
 
Notice 
 
The superintendent shall be responsible for ensuring annual notice of this policy is provided in a student or 
staff handbook, school and district’s website, and school and district office and the development of 
administrative regulations, including reporting and investigative procedures. Complaint procedures, as 
established by the district, shall be followed. 

Domestic violence posters provided by the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) shall be posted in 
clearly visible locations on school campuses in accordance with rules adopted by ODE. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
[ORS 163.190] 
[ORS 163.197] 
ORS 107.705 
ORS 166.065 
ORS 166.155 - 166.165 
ORS 174.100(7) 

ORS 332.072 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 339.240 
ORS 339.250 
ORS 339.351 - 339.368 
OAR 581-021-0045 

OAR 581-021-0046 
OAR 581-021-0055 
OAR 581-022-2310 
OAR 581-022-2370 
House Bill 2631 (2021) 
House Bill 3041 (2021)

 
Page 77

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-107
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R7/01/17│PH  Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Menacing, Bullying, Cyberbullying, Teen  
Dating Violence, Domestic Violence – Student ** – JFCF 

5-5 
 

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (20122018). 

 
Page 78



HR2/08/1810/05/21│PHLF Compliance and Reporting on Standards – CM 
1-1 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: CM 
Adopted:  
 

Compliance and Reporting on Standards 
 
The superintendent will prepare an annual report that represents the district’s compliance with the 
standards adopted by the State Board of Education for the preceding school year and submit that report to 
the Board. 
 
The district’s annual report will be presented orally at a public Board meeting by February November 1 of 
each school year and will allow public comment on such report. This report will be posted on the district’s 
web page by February 1 of each school year. The Board will acknowledge receipt of the report prior to its 
submission to the Oregon Department of Education (ODE). 
 
The district will report on its compliance with state standards to Oregon Department of Education (ODE) 
by February November 15 each year on a form provided by ODE. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.095 
ORS 329.105 

OAR 581-022-2260 
OAR 581-022-2305

 

 
Page 79

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR11/06/2010/05/21│LF 
 

School Counseling Program – IJ 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IJ 
Adopted:  
 

School Counseling Program 
 
The district’s coordinated comprehensive school counseling program supports the academic, career, 
social-emotional, and community involvement development of all students. Each school will have a 
comprehensive counseling program for students in all grades, which will be based on the Oregon 
Department of Education’s Oregon’s Framework for Comprehensive School Counseling Programs.1 
 
The district will adopt program goals, which will assist students to: 
 
1. Understand and utilize the educational opportunities and alternatives available to them; 

2. Meet academic standards; 

3. Establish tentative career and educational goals; 

4. Create and maintain an education plan and education portfolio; 

5. Demonstrate the ability to utilize personal qualities, education and training, in the world of work; 

6. Develop decision-making skills; 

7. Obtain information about self; 

8. Accept increasing responsibility for their own actions, including the development of self-advocacy 
skills; 

9. Develop skills in interpersonal relations, including the use of effective and receptive communication;  

10. Utilize school and community resources; 

11. Demonstrate and discuss personal contributions to the larger community; and 

12. Know where and how to utilize personal skills in making contributions to the community. 

Materials used in the counseling program will be free of content that may discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, disability, or marital status, or 
that which permits or requires different treatment of students on such basis unless such differences cover 
the same occupation and interest areas and the use of such different material is shown to be essential to the 
elimination of discrimination. 
 

                                                 
1 Oregon Department of Education - Comprehensive School Counseling 

 
Page 80

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/educator-resources/standards/comprehensive_school_counseling/Pages/default.aspx


HR11/06/2010/05/21│LF 
 

School Counseling Program – IJ 
2-2 

 

Consistent with individual rights and the counselor’s obligations as a professional, the counseling 
relationship and resulting information may be protected as privileged communications by Oregon law.2 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS   40.245 
[ORS 174.100] 
ORS 326.565 
ORS 326.575 
ORS 329.603 

ORS 332.107 
ORS 336.187 
 
OAR 581-021-0013 
OAR 581-021-0046(7) 

OAR 581-022-2030 
OAR 581-022-2055 
OAR 581-022-2060 
OAR 581-022-2250

 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2018); Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 34 
C.F.R. Part 99 (2019). 
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2018); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34 
C.F.R. Part 98 (2019). 
[House Bill 3041 (2021).] 

                                                 
2 See ORS 40.245. 

 
Page 81

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors---40
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR10/05/21│SL/LF Public Comment at Board Meetings – BDDH 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: BDDH 
Adopted:  
 

Public Comment at Board Meetings 
 
{HB 2560 (2021) goes into effect on January 1, 2022, and requires that districts provide the same 
opportunity for public comment to those attending virtually as is provided to those attending in person. We 
recommend that districts review current public comment practices and adopt policy language that meets 
the law and the desired district practice.} 

All Board meetings, with the exception of executive sessions, will be open to the public. The Board invites 
the district’s community members to attend Board meetings to become acquainted with the program and 
operation of the district. The public has a right to attend public meetings held in open session, and may be 
invited to share comments, ideas and opinions with the Board during designated times on the agenda. The 
Board may conduct a meeting without public comment.  The public meeting law is a public attendance 
law, not a public participation law.  The right of the public to attend does not include the right to 
participate by giving testimony or comment. 

The Lebanon Community School Board recognizes members as vital to the success of the school system.  
Therefore, the Board extends to community members the right to make comments at the designated place 
on the agenda.  Comments should follow the guidelines as described in the policy.   

Board members should refrain from responding to audience comments. 

Individuals with hearing, vision or speech impairments will be given an equal opportunity to participate in 
Board meetings and submit written comments to the Board. Individuals requesting assistance, aids or 
accommodations are encouraged to notify the district at least 48 hours prior to the Board meeting with the 
request, consistent with Board policy BD/BDA – Board Meetings. 

Procedures for Oral Public Comment 

The Board establishes the following procedures for public comment at Board meetings held in open 
session. The information will be accessible and available to all patrons accessing or attending such a Board 
meeting. 

1. Public comment is limited to its designated place on the agenda and while time allows and should be 
made in an orderly manner and civil tone. 

2. A person wishing to provide public comment, if an opportunity is provided by the Board during a 
meeting open to the public, will complete and submit the Intent to Speak form to the Board secretary 
prior to the Board meeting.1 If attending virtually, the Intent to Speak form must be submitted 24 
hours prior to the meeting.  A request to give public comment in-person or electronically does not 
guarantee time will be available. 

                                                 
1 When in-person attendees are allowed to provide oral comment, virtual attendees will be afforded the same opportunity. 

 
Page 82



HR10/05/21│SL/LF Public Comment at Board Meetings – BDDH 
2-2 

 

3. A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting may comment on a topic not 
on the published agenda. 

4. A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting should state their name, 
whether they are a resident of the district, and, if speaking for an organization, the name of the 
organization. A spokesperson should be designated to represent a group with a common purpose. 

5. A person giving public comment is limited to an established time limit of three minutes. Statements 
should be brief and concise. The Board chair has discretion to waive time limits or extend the overall 
time allotted for public comment. Additional time will be allocated in a fair and equitable manner. 
Time limits will be determined based on the number of commenters and the amount of time 
available for public comment. If a person has more comments than time allows or is unable to 
comment due to time constraints, the person is encouraged to submit additional written comments to 
the Board through the district office as directed.  

6. Inquiries from the public during the designated portion of the agenda will not generally be responded 
to immediately by the Board chair, and may be referred to the superintendent for reply at a later date. 
The Board will not respond to inquiries that are expected to be addressed during another designated 
portion of the agenda. 

The Board will not hear public comment at Board work sessions. 

Topics raised during the public comment portion may be considered for inclusion as agenda items at future 
Board meetings. 

Comments Regarding Staff Members 

A person speaking during the designated portion of the agenda for public comment may offer objective 
criticism of district operations and programs. The Board will not hear comments regarding any individual 
district staff member. The Board chair will direct the visitor to the procedures in Board policy KL - Public 
Complaints for consideration of a legitimate complaint involving a staff member. A commendation 
involving a staff member should be sent to the superintendent, who will forward it to the employee, a 
supervisor and the Board. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 165.535 
ORS 165.540 

ORS 192.610 - 192.690 
ORS 332.057 

ORS 332.107

 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213 (2018); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2020); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 
(2020). 
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12133 (2018). 
Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified Sch. Dist., 936 F. Supp. 719 (C.D. Cal. 1996). 
Leventhal v. Vista Unified Sch. Dist., 973 F. Supp. 951 (S.D. Cal. 1997). 
Oregon House Bill 2560 (2021). 
 

 
Page 83

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-165
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-165
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-192
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332


10/05/21│LF Public Comment at Board Meetings – BDDH-AR 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: BDDH-AR 
Revised/Reviewed:  
 

Public Comment at Board Meetings 
 
The Board requests that a public comment add information or a perspective that has not already been 
mentioned previously, and that the patron refrains from repeating a similar point. 

To provide public comment in person, if the opportunity is available on the Board agenda, please complete 
and submit the Intent to Speak form to the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Those attending virtually 
and want to provide public comment, the Intent to Speak form must be submitted 24 hours prior to the 
meeting.  A request to give public comment in-person or electronically does not guarantee time will be 
available.  

A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting may comment on a topic not on the 
published agenda. A person providing public comment will be allowed three minutes. Signing up to 
provide public comment does not guarantee time will be available. 

Any person, who is allowed to speak to the Board during a meeting, should state their name, whether they 
are a resident of the district and, if speaking for an organization, the name of the organization. A 
spokesperson should be designated to represent a group with a common purpose. 

Comments about a specific employee or group of employees should comply with Board policy BDDH - 
Public Comment at Board Meetings: 

“A person speaking during the designated portion of the agenda for public comment may offer 
objective criticism of district operations and programs. The Board will not hear comments regarding 
any individual district staff member. The Board chair will direct the visitor to the procedures in 
Board policy KL - Public Complaints for consideration of a legitimate complaint involving a staff 
member. A commendation involving a staff member should be sent to the superintendent[, who will 
forward it to the employee, a supervisor and the Board.” 

 

SEE FORM ON REVERSE  

 
Page 84



10/05/21│LF Public Comment at Board Meetings – BDDH-AR 
2-2 

 

INTENT TO SPEAK 
 
The Board welcomes input. To provide in-person public comment please submit this completed card to the 
Board secretary prior the start of the meeting. 
 
If attending virtually, the following will apply: 
 

1. You will need to complete the digital Intent to Speak form on the School Board Minutes and 
Agendas page on the district website. 

2. Name of participant for Zoom meeting must match the information below.   
3. You will be assigned a speaking order, which you will receive with your Zoom link for the 

meeting. 
4. You must have your camera on when speaking. 
5. You must follow the meeting participation expectations provided by the Board Chair or you will be 

removed from the meeting. 
 

 
Name:   Phone:   
Name of organization (if applicable):   
Address:   
Email (optional):   
Topic or comment to be presented (brief description):   
  

  

A complaint brought before the Board shall be referred to the proper school authorities. A complaint shall 
be processed in accordance with Board policy KL - Public Complaints and KL-AR - Public Complaints 
Procedure. A hearing conducted by the Board regarding personnel may take place in an executive session. 

The Board requests that a topic or comment is limited to three minutes or less. 

 
Page 85



Instructional Resources/Instructional Materials - IIA 
1-2 

 

Code:   IIA 
Adopted: 12/16/10 
Readopted: 9/11/14 

 
 
 

Instructional Resources/Instructional Materials (Version 1) 
 
The Board is responsible for the selection of instructional materials. The Board delegates to district 
professional personnel the authority for the selection of instructional and library media materials in 
accordance with the policy below. 

 
Selection Objectives 

 
When reviewing and selecting instructional resources and materials, the objectives will be: 

 
1. To select materials that will provide improvements in content, organization and teaching methods; 

 
2. To ensure accurate and up-to-date content that includes new concepts, insights and facts; 

 
3. To provide for sequential growth from level to level; 

 
4. To provide a fair representation of the many religious, ethnic and cultural groups and their 

contributions to our American heritage; 
 
5. To provide resources and materials that are free of racial, color, national origin, religious, 

disability, age, marital status, gender identity, sexual orientation or sexual bias. recognition of 
minority groups and women by placing them frequently in positions of leadership and example. 
There will be no discrimination or bias or prejudice toward sex, sexual orientation, race, religion, 
national origin, marital status, disability or age. 

 
The district will establish a process and timeline for regularly determining and considering whether the 
textbooks and other instructional materials are available through online resources that enable students with 
print disabilities to receive textbooks and instructional materials free of charge. 

 
Textbooks and other instructional materials adopted by the Board shall be selected by the appropriate 
professional personnel in consultation with parents and citizens. The input of staff and students will be 
encouraged. Final decisions on purchase will rest with the superintendent or designee, subject to official 
adoption by the Board in the case of textbooks and other instructional materials. 

 
Selection Criteria 

 
All materials selected will be consistent with the following principles: 

 
6. Materials that enrich and support the curriculum, taking into consideration the varied interests, 

abilities and maturity levels of the students served; 
 
7. Materials that stimulate growth in factual knowledge, literary appreciation, aesthetic values and 

Lebanon Community Schools 

 
Page 86



Instructional Resources/Instructional Materials - IIA 
2-2 

 

ethical standards; 
 
8. A background of information which will enable students to make intelligent judgments in their daily 

lives; 
 

9. Materials on opposing sides of controversial issues, so that young citizens may develop, under 
guidance, the practice of analytical reading and thinking; 

 
10. Materials representative of the many religious, ethnic and cultural groups, showing their 

contributions to our heritage. 
 

The above principles will serve as a guide in the selection of all instructional and library media materials. 
 

To be in compliance with the requirements of federal law, the Board directs the superintendent to 
distribute curriculum materials and instructional supplies to district schools in such a manner that ensures 
all schools receive equivalent materials. 

 
Any resident or employee may challenge the appropriateness of the district’s instructional materials. The 
district will provide a procedure to process such challenges. 

 
END OF POLICY 

 
 
Legal Reference(s): 

  

ORS 336.035 ORS 337.260 OAR 581-021-0045 
ORS 336.840 ORS 337.511 OAR 581-021-0046 
ORS 337.120 ORS 339.155 OAR 581-022-1140 
ORS 337.141  OAR 581-022-1520 
ORS 337.150 OAR 581-011-0050 to -0117 OAR 581-022-1640 

 OAR 581-022-2310 OAR 581-022-2350 

 OAR 581-022-2340 OAR 581-022-2355 

No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, 20 U.S.C. §§ 6311-6322 (2006).  

Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 6311-6322 (2018).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 87

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-337
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-337
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-337
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-337
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-337
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-011
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022


HR10/05/21│LF Admission of Nonresident Students – JECB 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: JECB 
Adopted:  
 

Admission of Nonresident Students 
 
The district may enroll nonresident students as follows: 
 
1. Interdistrict Transfer Agreement. By written consent of the affected school boards, the student 

becomes a resident student of the attending district thereby allowing the attending district to receive 
State School Fund moneys; 

2. Tuition Paying Student. By admitting nonresident student with tuition, whereby neither affected 
districts are eligible for State School Fund moneys; 

3. Court Placement. If a juvenile court determines it is in the student’s best interest, a student placed in 
a substitute care program outside the district will continue to be considered a resident student and 
allowed to attend the school the student attended prior to placement. The public agency placing the 
student in a substitute care program will be responsible for the transportation of the student, if public 
agency funds are available. 

The Board shall deny regular school admission to nonresident students who are under expulsion from 
another district for a weapons policy violation. The Board may, based on district criteria, deny admission 
to nonresident students who are under expulsion from another district for reasons other than a weapons 
policy violation. 
 
Consent for Admission of a Nonresident Student by Interdistrict Transfer or Consent for Admission 
of a Tuition Paying Student 
 
The Board may not consider nor ask for any information from the student about race, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, ethnicity, national origin, disability, health, whether a student has an 
individualized education program (IEP) or the terms of that IEP, identified as talented and gifted, income 
level, residence, proficiency in English, athletic ability, or academic records. The Board may not request or 
require the student to participate in an interview, tour any of the schools or facilities, or otherwise meet 
with any representatives of the school or district prior to the district deciding whether to give consent. 
 
The Board may only ask for the student’s name, contact information, date of birth, grade level, whether the 
student may be given priority on consent for admission (see the following paragraph for priorities), 
information about which schools the student prefers to attend, and whether the student is currently 
expelled. 
 
If the number of students seeking consent exceeds the number of spaces, the Board will use an equitable 
lottery selection process. The process may give priority to students who have siblings currently enrolled in 
the district; who previously received consent for admission because of a change in legal residence; or who 
attended a public charter school located in the same district in which the student seeks to attend, for three 
consecutive years, completed the highest grade offered by the public charter school, and did not enroll and 
attend school in another district following completion of that highest grade in the public charter school. 
 

 
Page 88



HR10/05/21│LF Admission of Nonresident Students – JECB 
2-2 

 

The Board may revise the maximum number of students to whom consent will be given at a time other 
than the annual date established by the Board if there are no pending applications for consent. 
 
If the Board decides not to give consent to a student the Board must provide a written explanation to the 
student. 
 
The district may require minimum standards of behavior and/or attendance once the student has been 
accepted. The minimum standards must be the same for all students that are given consent. The district is 
not allowed to establish minimum standards for academics as a criteria for the student to remain in the 
district. Students whose consent is revoked for violation of set attendance and/or behavior standards will 
not be allowed to apply for consent to return to this district in the same or the following school year. 
 
The Board may determine the length of time the consent is given. Any limitations in length of time must 
be applied consistently among all students to whom consent is given. 
 
The district is not required to provide transportation outside the boundaries of the district. The student will 
be allowed to use existing bus routes and transportation services of the district. Transportation will be 
provided if required by federal law. 
 
The attending district is responsible for a free appropriate public education for those students on an IEP. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 174.100 
ORS 327.006 
ORS 329.485 
ORS 335.090 

ORS 339.115 - 339.133 
ORS 339.141 
ORS 339.250 
ORS 343.221 

ORS 433.267 
OAR 581-021-0019

 

 
Page 89

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-327
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-335
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-433
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR7/01/1710/05/21│PHRS Assessment Program** – IL 
1-3 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy                                               
 
Code: IL 
Adopted:  
 

Assessment Program** 
 
The district’s assessment program shall be designed for the purpose of determining district and school 
program improvement and individual student needs including the requirements of the Oregon 
Administrative Rules. Each year the district shall determine each student’s progress toward achieving 
federal, state and local achievement requirements. 
 
Assessments shall be used to measure the academic content standards and Essential Skills and to identify 
students who meet or exceed the performance standards and Essential Skills adopted by the State Board of 
Education. 
 
Accordingly, the district shall maintain the following assessment program: 
 
1. Criterion-reference assessments, including performance-based assessments, content-based 

assessments and other valid methods as may be required by state and federal requirements; 

2. Assessment of Essential Skills; 

3.2. Individual diagnostic and ability evaluations in all grades when students have been referred and 
parental permission obtained; 

4.3. Assessments by individual teachers; 

5.4. Optional Other schoolwide and grade levelwide assessments, as recommended by the superintendent 
and as approved by the Board. 

It is the intent of the Board that progress be measured in a manner that clearly enables the student and 
parents to know whether the student is making progress toward meeting or exceeding academic content 
standards. District, school and individual results shall be reported to the Board, parents and the 
community, as prescribed by law. 
 
The district shall make additional services or alternative educational or public school options available to 
any student who has not met or has exceeded all of the state-required academic content standards. 
Additionally, students in schools receiving Title I moneys that have been identified by the Oregon 
Department of Education (ODE), will be provided supplemental services and public school options as 
required by law. 
 
The district shall not discriminate in the methods, practices and materials used for assessment, evaluating 
and counseling students on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, age, disability or marital status. Discrimination complaints shall be processed in accordance with 
established procedures. 
 

 
Page 90



HR7/01/1710/05/21│PHRS Assessment Program** – IL 
2-3 

 

Staff will receive in-service education in the use of designated assessments and interpretation of 
assessment results. 
 
A parent on behalf of their student or an adult student may annually opt-out of taking a statewide 
summative assessment by completing and submitting ODE’s opt-out form1 to the school. The district shall 
provide supervised study time for students who are excused from participating in the assessment. A 
student may be excused from the Oregon Statewide Assessment Program for disability or religious 
reasons. Parents and adult students will be provided the required notices2 and access to forms by the 
district that include a time frame in which statewide assessments will take place, and an adult student’s or 
parent’s right to request an exemption from taking the statewide summative assessments. 
 
A student may opt-out of the Smarter Balanced and/or alternate Oregon Extended Assessments in English 
language arts and mathematics as provided in state law. The district shall provide the required notice and 
necessary forms to the student. The district shall provide supervised study time for students who are 
excused from participating in the assessment. A student may be excused from the Oregon Statewide 
Assessment Program for disability or religious reasons. Parents and adult students will be provided the 
required notices3 and access to forms by the district that include a time frame in which statewide 
assessments will take place, and an adult student’s or parent’s right to request an exemption from taking 
the statewide summative assessments. 
 
The district shall establish conduct and discipline consequences for student-initiated test impropriety. The 
act of student-initiated test impropriety is prohibited. A student that participates in an act of student-
initiated test impropriety will be subject to discipline. “Student-initiated test impropriety” means student 
conduct that is inconsistent with the Test Administration Manual or accompanying guidance; or results in a 
score that is invalid. 
 
The superintendent shall ensure a periodic review and evaluation of the district’s assessment program is 
conducted. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS   40.245 
ORS 326.565 
ORS 326.575 
ORS 329.479 
ORS 329.485 
ORS 336.187 
ORS 659.850 

ORS 659.870 
OAR 581-021-0009 
OAR 581-021-0030 
OAR 581-022-1910 
OAR 581-022-2030 
OAR 581-022-2060 
OAR 581-022-2100 

OAR 581-022-2110 
OAR 581-022-2115 
OAR 581-022-2250 
OAR 581-022-2270 
OAR 581-022-2310 
House Bill 3041 (2021) 
Senate Bill 602 (2021)

 

                                                 
1 Oregon Department of Education page for: 30-day notice and opt-out form 

2 Districts are required to provide notice twice each year: once at the beginning of the year and second time at least 30 days prior 
to the administration of the test. 

3 Districts are required to provide notice twice each year: once at the beginning of the year; and second time at least 30 days 
prior to the administration of the test. 

 
Page 91

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-40
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
https://www.oregon.gov/ode/educator-resources/assessment/Pages/Assessment-Administration.aspx


HR7/01/17│PH Assessment Program** – IL 
3-3 

 

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (20122018); Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 34 
C.F.R. Part 99 (20172021). 
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (20122018); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34 
C.F.R. Part 98 (20172021). 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. §§ 1400-1419 (20122018). 
Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 6311-6322 (20122018). 

 
Page 92



CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
1-7 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IKF 
Adopted:  
 

Graduation Requirements** 
(This version does not require an administrative regulation.)(If the district has additional credit or graduation requirements 
above the state requirements, the district is required to include those additional credits and graduation requirements in the 

following lists.) 
(Version 1) 

 
The Board will establishes graduation requirements for the awarding of a high school diploma, a modified 
diploma, an extended diploma and an alternative certificate which meet or exceed state requirements. 

A student may satisfy graduation requirements in less than four years. The district will award a diploma to 
a student fulfilling graduation requirements in less than four years if consent is given by the student’s 
parent or guardian or by the student if the student is 18 years of age or older or emancipated. 
 
If the district requires diploma requirements beyond the state requirements, the district shall grant a waiver 
for those requirements to any student who, at any time from grade 9 to 12, was: 
 
1. A foster child1; 

2. Homeless; 

3. A runaway; 

4. A child in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for 
Military Children; 

5. A child of a migrant worker; or 

6. Enrolled in the Youth Corrections Education Program or the Juvenile Detention Education Program. 

For any student identified above, the district shall accept any credits earned by the student in another 
district or public charter school, applying those credits toward the state requirements for a diploma if the 
credits satisfied those requirements in that district or public charter school. 
 
Diploma 
 
A high school diploma will be awarded to students in grades 9 through 12 who complete a minimum of 24 
credits{2} which include at least: 
 

                                                 
1 As defined in ORS 30.297. 

2 {If the district has additional credit or graduation requirements, the district is required to include those additional credits and 
graduation requirements in the following lists.} 

 
Page 93



CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
2-7 

 

1. Three credits in mathematics (shall include one unit at the Algebra I level and two units that are at a 
level higher than Algebra I); 

2. Four credits in English language arts (shall include the equivalent of one unit in written 
composition); 

3. Three credits in science; 

4. Three credits in social sciences (including history, civics3, geography and economics (including 
personal finance)); 

5. One credit in health education; 

6. One credit in physical education; and 

7. Three credits in career and technical education, the arts or world languages (units shall be earned in 
any one or a combination). 

The district shall offer students credit options provided the method for obtaining such credits is described 
in the student’s personal education plan and the credit is earned by meeting requirements described in 
Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2025. 
 
To receive a diploma, in addition to credit requirements outlined in OAR 581-022-2000, a student must4: 
 
1. Demonstrate proficiency in the Essential Skills of reading, writing, and applying mathematics in a 

variety of settings; 

1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile; 

2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence; and 

3. Participate in career-related learning experiences. 

Essential Skills 
 
The district [will] [will not] allow English Language Learner (ELL) students to demonstrate proficiency in 
all required Essential Skills in the student’s language of origin. 
 
[{5}The district will develop procedures to provide assessment options as described in the Test 
Administration Manual, in the ELL student’s language of origin, and will develop procedures to ensure 
that locally scored assessment options administered in an ELL student’s language of origin are scored by a 
qualified rater.] 

                                                 
3 Civics becomes a half-credit requirement beginning on January 1, 2026 (Senate Bill 513, 2021). 

4 The proficiency in Essential Skills requirement has been waived and is not a condition of receiving a high school diploma 
during the 2021-2022, 2022-2023 or 2023-2024 school year (Senate Bill 744, 2021). 

{5 This paragraph is required if the district allows ELL students to demonstrate proficiency in Essential Skills in their language 
of origin.} 

 
Page 94



CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
3-7 

 

[Essential Skills Appeal 

The district will [establish an appeal process] [follow Board policy KL - Public Complaints] in the event 
of an appeal for the denial of a diploma based on the Essential Skills graduation requirement. The district 
will retain student work samples and student performance data to ensure that sufficient evidence is 
available in the event of an appeal.] 

Modified Diploma 

A modified diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the full 
set of academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while receiving 
reasonable modifications and accommodations. A modified diploma may only be awarded to a student 
who meets the eligibility criteria below and other criteria, if applicable, outlined in OAR 581-022-2010(3): 

1. Has a documented history of an inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant 
learning and instructional barriers; or 

2. Has a documented history of a medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement. 

Having met the above eligibility criteria, a modified diploma will be awarded to students who, while in 
grade nine through completion of high school, complete 24 credits which shall include: 
 
1. Three credits in English language arts; 

2. Two credits in mathematics; 

3. Two credits in science; 

4. Two credits in social sciences (which may include history, civics, geography and economics 
(including personal finance)); 

5. One credit in health education; 

6. One credit in physical education; and 

7. One credit in career technical education, the arts or world languages (units may be earned in any one 
or a combination). 

Students may earn additional credits to earn a modified diploma pursuant to OAR 581-022-2010. 

In addition to credit requirements as outlined in OAR 581-022-2010, a student must: 
 
1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile; and 

2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence. 

A student must also demonstrate proficiency in the Essential Skills with reasonable modifications and 
accommodations. 
 
Districts may make modifications to the assessment for students who seek a modified diploma when the 
following conditions are met: 

 
Page 95



CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
4-7 

 

 
1. For a student on an individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan, any modifications 

to work samples must be consistent with the requirements established in the IEP or 504 plan. 
Modifications include practices and procedures that compromise the intent of the assessment through 
a change in learning expectations, construct, or content that is to be measured, grade level standard, 
or measured outcome of the assessment. This means that IEP or 504 school teams responsible for 
approving modifications for a student’s assessment may adjust the administration of the assessment 
and/or the assessment’s achievement standard; 

2. For a student not on an IEP or 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must have been 
provided to the student during their instruction in the content area to be assessed and in the year in 
which the student is being assessed, and modifications must be approved by the school team that is 
responsible for monitoring the student’s progress toward the modified diploma. 

Students not on an IEP or a Section 504 Plan may not receive a modified Smarter Balanced assessment. 
 
A student’s school team shall decide that a student should work toward a modified diploma no earlier than 
the end of grade six and no later than two years before the student’s anticipated exit from high school. 
A student’s school team may decide to revise a modified diploma decision. 
 
A student’s school team may decide that a student who was not previously working toward a modified 
diploma should work toward one when the student is less than two years from anticipated exit from high 
school if the documented history has changed. 
 
Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for a modified diploma, the 
district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the availability 
and requirements of a modified diploma. 
 
Extended Diploma 
 
An extended diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the 
full set of academic content standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while 
receiving modifications and accommodations. To be eligible for an extended diploma, a student must: 
 
1. While in grade nine through completion of high school, complete 12 credits, which may not include 

more than six credits in a self-contained special education classroom and will include: 

a. Two credits in mathematics; 
b. Two credits in Englishlanguage arts; 
c. Two credits in science; 
d. Three credits in history, geography, economics or civics; 
e. One credit in health; 
f. One credit in physical education; and 
g. One credit in the arts or a world language. 

2. Have a documented history of: 

a. An inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional 
barriers;  

 
Page 96



CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
5-7 

 

b. A medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement; or 
c. A change in the student’s ability to participate in grade level activities as a result of a serious 

illness or injury that occurred after grade eight. 

Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for an extended diploma, the 
district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the availability 
and requirements of an extended diploma. 
 
Alternative Certificates 
 
Alternative certificates will be awarded to students who do not satisfy the requirements for a diploma, a 
modified diploma, or an extended diploma if the students meet minimum requirements established by the 
district. 
 
Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for an alternative certificate, 
the district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the 
availability and requirements of an alternative certificate. 
 
Other District Responsibilities 

The district will ensure that students have onsite access to the appropriate resources to achieve a diploma, 
a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative certificate at each high school. The district will 
provide [age-appropriate and developmentally appropriate] literacy instruction to all students until 
graduation. 

The district may not deny a student the opportunity to pursue a diploma with more stringent requirements 
than a modified diploma or an extended diploma for the sole reason the student has the documented 
history listed under the above modified diploma or extended diploma requirements. 

The district may award a modified diploma or an extended diploma to a student only upon the written 
consent of a student who is emancipated or who has reached the age of 18 at the time the modified or 
extended diploma is awarded, or the student’s parent or guardian. The district shall receive the written 
consent during the school year in which the modified diploma or the extended diploma is awarded. 

A student shall have the opportunity to satisfy the requirements for a modified diploma, an extended 
diploma or an alternative certificate in either the later of 4 years after starting the ninth grade, or until the 
student reaches the age of 21 if the student is entitled to a public education until the age of 21 under state 
or federal law. 

A student may satisfy the requirements for a modified diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative 
certificate in less than four years but not less than three years. To satisfy the requirements for a modified 
diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative certificate in less than four years, the student’s parent or 
guardian or a student who is emancipated or has reached the age of 18 must provide written consent which 
clearly states the parent, guardian or student is waiving the fourth year and/or years until the student 
reaches the age of 21. A copy of the consent will be forwarded to the district superintendent who will 
annually report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction the number of such consents. 

A student who qualifies to receive or receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative 
certificate shall have the option of participating in a high school graduation ceremony with the student’s 
class. 

 
Page 97



CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
6-7 

 

A student who receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative certificate shall have 
access to instructional hours, hours of transition services and hours of other services that are designed to 
meet the unique needs of the student and when added together provide a total number of hours of 
instruction and services that equals at least the total number of instructional hours that are required to be 
provided to students who are attending a public high school. 

The district will award to students with disabilities a document certifying successful completion of 
program requirements. No document issued to students with disabilities educated in full or in part in a 
special education program shall indicate that the document is issued by such a program. When a student 
who has an IEP completes high school, the district will give the student an individualized summary of 
performance. 

Eligible students with disabilities are entitled to a free appropriate public education (FAPE) until the age of 
21, even if they have earned a modified diploma, an extended diploma, an alternative certificate or 
completion of a General Education Development document. The continuance of services for students with 
disabilities for a modified diploma, extended diploma or alternative certificate is contingent on the IEP 
team determining the student’s continued eligibility and special education services are needed. 

Students and their parents will be notified of graduation and diploma requirements. 

[The district will review graduation requirements biennially in conjunction with the secondary school 
improvement plan. Graduation requirements may be revised to address student performance.] 

The district may not deny a diploma to a student who has opted out of statewide assessments if the student 
is able to satisfy all other requirements for the diploma. Students who opt-out will need to meet the 
Essential Skills graduation requirement using another approved assessment option. Students may opt-out 
of the Smarter Balanced or alternate Oregon Extended Assessment by completing the Oregon Department 
of Education’s Opt-out Form6 and submitting the form to the district. 

The district will issue a high school diploma pursuant to Oregon law (ORS 332.114) to a veteran if the 
veteran resides within the boundaries of the district or is an Oregon resident and attended a high school of 
the district, or to a deceased veteran, upon request from a representative of the veteran, if the deceased 
veteran resided within the boundaries of the district at the time of death or was an Oregon resident at the 
time of death and attended a high school of the district. 

The district shall establish conduct and discipline consequences for student-initiated test impropriety.The 
act of student-initiated test impropriety is prohibited. A student that participates in an act of student-
initiated test impropriety will be subject to discipline. “Student-initiated test impropriety” means student 
conduct that is inconsistent with the Test Administration Manual or accompanying guidance; or results in a 
score that is invalid. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.007 

                                                 
6 www.ode.state.or.us: Educator Resources> Student Assessment > Test Administration > Forms > 2018-2019 30-day notice 
and opt-out form Oregon Department of Education page for: 30-day notice and opt-out form  

ORS 329.045 ORS 329.451 

 
Page 98

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
https://www.oregon.gov/ode/educator-resources/assessment/Pages/Assessment-Administration.aspx
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329


CR7/18/1910/05/21│RSLF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
7-7 

 

ORS 329.479 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 332.114 
ORS 339.115 
ORS 339.505 
ORS 343.295 

 
OAR 581-021-0009 
OAR 581-022-2000 
OAR 581-022-2005 
OAR 581-022-2010 
OAR 581-022-2015 

OAR 581-022-2020 
OAR 581-022-2025 
OAR 581-022-2030 
OAR 581-022-2115 
OAR 581-022-2120 
OAR 581-022-2505

 
Test Administration Manual, published by the OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. 
House Bill 2056 (2021). 
Senate Bill 744 (2021). 

 
Page 99

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


2/28/1910/05/21│PHSL Individual Board Member’s Authority and Responsibilities – BBAA 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: BBAA 
Adopted:  
 

Individual Board Member’s Authority and Responsibilities 
 
An individual Board member exercises the authority and responsibility of their position when the Board is 
in legal session only. 
 
A Board member has the authority to act in the name of the Board when authorized by a specific Board 
motion. The affirmative vote of the majority of members of the Board is required to transact any business. 
When authorized to act as the district’s designated representative in collective bargaining, a Board member 
may make and accept proposals in bargaining subject to subsequent approval by the Board. 
 
A Board member has the right to express personal opinions. When expressing personalsuch opinions in 
public, the Board member shouldmust clearly identify the opinions as their own. 
 
Members will be knowledgeable of information requested through Board action, supplied by the 
superintendent, gained through attendance at district activities and through professional Board activities. 
 
Members of the Board will adhere to the following in carrying out the responsibilities of membership: 
 
1. Request for Information 

Any individual Board member who desires a copy of an existing written report or survey prepared 
by the administrative staff will make such a request to the superintendent. A copy of the material 
may be made available to each member of the Board. Requests for the generation of reports or 
information, which require additional expense to the district, must be submitted to the Board for 
consideration. 

2. Requests for Legal Opinions 

Requests for legal advice or opinions by a Board member must be approved by a majority vote of the 
Board before the request is made to legal counsel. The Board chair is authorized to obtain legal 
advice or opinions if advantageous to do so prior to the next meeting (e.g., advice regarding an 
executive session or a decision to invite district legal counsel) without a need for Board approval.. If 
the legal opinion sought involves the superintendent’s employment or performance, the request 
should be made to the board chair. Legal counsel is responsible to the Board. 

3. Action on Complaints or Requests Made to Board Members 

When Board members receive complaints or requests for action from staff, students or members of 
the public, the Board members will direct the staff, students, members of the public to the 
appropriate complaint policy Board policy KL – Public Complaints. Such information will be 
conveyed to the superintendent. 

  

 
Page 100



2/28/1910/05/21│PHSL Individual Board Member’s Authority and Responsibilities – BBAA 
2-2 

 

4. Board Member’s Relationship to Administration 

Individual Board members will be informed about the district’s educational program, may visit 
schools or other facilities to gain information, and may request information from the superintendent. 
No individual Board member may direct the superintendent to action without Board authorization. 
Board members will not intervene in the administration of the district or its schools. 

5. Contracts or Agreements 

All contracts of the district must be approved by the Board, unless otherwise delegated by the Board 
to the superintendent or designee for approval, before an order can be drawn for payment. If a 
contract is made without authority of the Board, the individual making such contract shall be 
personally liable. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.045 
ORS 332.055 

ORS 332.057 
ORS 332.075

 
38 OR. ATTY. GEN. OP. 1995 (1978) 
S. Benton Educ. Ass’n v. Monroe Union High Sch. Dist., 83 Or. App. 425 (1987). 

 
Page 101

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332


10/05/21│SL Interscholastic Activities – IGDJ 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGDJ 
Adopted:  
 

Interscholastic Activities 
 
The Board recognizes the integral role interscholastic activities play in the character development and 
general enhancement of the education of its students. Accordingly, administrators, coaches, student 
participants, and others associated with the district’s high school activities programs and events1 shall 
conduct themselves in a manner that is consistent with the letter and spirit of policies, rules, and 
regulations of the district and of the Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) and the fundamental 
values of sportsmanship. Each will be held accountable for their actions. 
 
The district shall allow homeschooled students that reside in the district, students eligible to attend school 
and enrolled in a district- or ESD-provided General Education Development (GED) program that reside in 
the district, and students attending a public charter school that reside in the district to participate in 
available interscholastic activities when the requirements found in Oregon law are met.  
 
Interscholastic activities when provided by the district will comply with Title IX. 
 
District employees, students, parents, alumni, and activity volunteers are prohibited from inducing or 
attempting to induce a student to attend a district school for interscholastic activity eligibility or 
participation. The principal, activities director, and coaches are each responsible for ensuring student 
participants meet all district and OSAA eligibility requirements. The principal is responsible for ensuring 
accurate certification regarding the eligibility of participating students and for verifying that athletic 
directors, coaches of sports, and activity advisors have  all required certifications prior to assuming their 
duties. The principal shall ensure that a program is in place to effectively evaluate the performance of all 
coaches and activity advisors under their supervision. 
 
Volunteers may be approved to assist with district activities with prior approval from the principal. 
 
The principal shall investigate all allegations of district student ineligibility, staff recruitment violations or 
other student or staff conduct that may violate Board policies, administrative regulations, and/or OSAA 
rules and regulations. The principal shall notify the superintendent of conduct that violates the terms of 
this policy and report to the OSAA as required. 
 
An employee determined to have violated rules and regulations of the OSAA may be subject to discipline, 
up to and including, dismissal. A student in violation of the OSAA rules and regulations will be subject to 
discipline, up to and including, dismissal from an interscholastic activity or program, suspension and/or 
expulsion from school. Volunteers in violation of the OSAA rules and regulations shall be subject to 
discipline, up to and including, removal from district programs and activities and such other sanctions as 
may be deemed appropriate by the district. 
 

                                                 
1 This applies to only OSAA-sanctioned activities and events. 

 
Page 102



10/05/21│SL Interscholastic Activities – IGDJ 
2-2 

 

Employees, volunteers, or students in violation of OSAA rules and/or regulations may be required to 
remunerate the district in the event of fines assessed by OSAA as a result of their actions. 

The superintendent will develop procedures, as necessary, to implement this policy, including a process to 
ensure that all district rules governing the conduct of students, staff, and volunteers engaged in district 
activities are regularly reviewed and updated. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 326.051 
ORS 332.075(1)(e) 
ORS 339.450 - 339.460 
 

OAR 581-015-2255 
OAR 581-021-0045 - 0049 
OAR 581-026-0005 
 

OAR 581-026-0700 
OAR 581-026-0705 
OAR 581-026-0710

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683; Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education 
Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106. 
OREGON SCHOOL ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATION, OSAA HANDBOOK. 
Montgomery v. Bd. of Educ., 188 Or. App. 63 (2003). 

 
Page 103

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-026
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-026
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-026
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-026


6/30/1610/05/21│PHLF Educational Equity – JBB 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: JBB 
Adopted:  
 

Educational Equity 
 
The district is dedicated to the success of every student in each of our schools. For that success to occur, 
the district is committed to equity by recognizing institutional barriers and creating access and 
opportunities that benefit each student. Equity at Lebanon Community School District will not be confused 
with equality, where all students are treated the same. Equity will be an enduring commitment where race 
will no longer be a predictor of student achievement; where historically underserved groups1 increase in 
capacity and power; and where barriers to student success have been mitigated or eliminated. 
Educational equity is based on the principles of fairness and justice in allocating resources, opportunity, 
treatment and creating success for each student. 
 
Educational equity promotes the real possibility of equality of educational results for each student and 
between diverse groups of students. Equity strategies are intentional, systemic and focused on the core of 
the teaching and learning process. 
 
To achieve educational equity the district will commit to: 
 
1. Systematically using districtwide and individual school level data, disaggregated by [1race/ethnicity, 

national origin, language, special education, sex, non-binary, socioeconomic status and mobility] to 
inform district decision making. 

2. Raising the achievement of all students while narrowing the gap between the lowest and the highest 
performing students. 

3. Eliminating the predictability and disparity in all aspects of education and its administration,  
including but not limited to, the disproportionate representation of students by race, poverty, sex, 
sexual orientation2, gender identity, and national origin in discipline, special education and in 
various advanced learning. 

4. Graduating all students ready to succeed in a diverse local, national and global community. 

In order to achieve educational equity for each and every student: 
 
1. The district shall provide every student with equitable access to high quality curriculum, support, 

facilities and other educational resources, even when this means differentiating resource allocation. 

                                                 
1 These are data categories that the Oregon Department of Education collects. Districts may choose to add to this list from data 
the district collects. 

2 “Sexual orientation” is defined by Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 174.100(7) to mean an individual’s actual or perceived 
heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality or gender identify, regardless of whether the individual’s gender identity, 
appearance, expression or behavior differs from that traditionally associated with the individual’s sex at birth. 

 
Page 104



6/30/1610/05/21│PHLF Educational Equity – JBB 
2-2 

 

2. The district shall review existing policies, programs, professional development and procedures for 
the promotion of educational equity, and all applicable new policies, programs and procedures will 
be developed [using an educational equity analysis tool] [with educational equity as a priority]. 

3. The district shall actively work toward a balanced teacher and administrator workforce to reflect the 
diversity of the student body. The district seeks to recruit, employ, support and retain a workforce 
that includes racial, sex gender and linguistic diversity, as well as culturally and linguistically 
responsive administrative, instructional and support personnel. 

4. The district shall provide professional development to strengthen employees’ knowledge and skills 
for eliminating opportunity gaps and other disparities in achievement. 

5. The district shall create schools with a welcoming, inclusive culture and environment that reflects 
and supports diversity of the student population, their families and their community. 

6. The district shall include partners who have demonstrated culturally specific expertise, including but 
not limited to, families, government agencies, institutions of higher learning, early childhood 
education organizations, community-based organizations, local businesses and the community in 
general, in meeting our high goals for educational outcomes. The district shall seek to involve 
students, staff, families and community members that reflect district demographics to inform 
decisions regarding the narrowing of the achievement and other opportunity gaps. 

7. The district shall provide multiple pathways to success in order to meet the needs of the diverse 
student body and shall actively encourage, support and expect high academic achievement for each 
student. 

8. The district shall provide materials and assessments that reflect the diversity of students and staff 
and are geared toward the understanding and appreciation of [culture, class, race, language, 
ethnicity, poverty, ability and other differences that contribute to] the uniqueness of each student and 
staff member. 

The superintendent shall include equity practices in the district’s strategic plan to implement this policy. 
The superintendent will annually report to the Board the progress of the strategic plan. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 174.100(7) 
ORS 332.075 

ORS 332.107 
ORS 342.437 - 342.449

 
House Bill 3041 (2021). 

 
Page 105

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342


11/06/2010/05/21│RS Graduation Exercises – IKFB 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IKFB 
Adopted:  
 

Graduation Exercises 
 
The Board believes that completion of the requirements for a diploma, a modified diploma, an extended 
diploma or an alternative certificate from public schools is an achievement that improves the community 
as well as the individual. The Board wishes to recognize this achievement in a publicly, celebrated 
graduation exercise. 
 
Accordingly, appropriate graduation programs may be planned by the school on the date selected by the 
Board. 
 
The district’s valedictorian(s), salutatorian(s) or others, at the discretion of the principal or designee, may 
be permitted to speak as part of the district’s planned graduation program. All speeches will be reviewed 
and approved in advance by the building principal or designee. 
 
All students in good standing who have successfully completed the requirements for a high school 
diploma, or qualifies qualify to receive or receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma or an 
alternative certificate, including a student participating in a district-sponsored alternative education 
program and a student with disabilities receiving a document certifying successful completion of program 
requirements, shall have the option to participate in graduation exercises. 
 
A student shall be allowed to wear a dress uniform issued to the student by a branch of the U.S. Armed 
Forces if the student: 
 
1. Qualifies to receive a high school diploma, a modified diploma, an extended diploma or an 

alternative certificate; and 

2. Has completed basic training for, and is an active member of, a branch of the U.S. Armed Forces. 

[Graduating students will be allowed to wear Native American or other items of cultural significance{1}, 
in accordance with consistently-enforced rules established by the principal or designee.{2}[3]] 

END OF POLICY 

                                                 
1 {HB 2052 (2021) requires that districts allow students to wear Native American items of cultural significance to graduation 
and other school events. Districts can choose to allow students to wear items of significance to other cultures.} “Native 
American items of cultural significance” means items or objects that are traditionally associated with Native American or that 
have religious or cultural significance to a Native American. 

2 The district may prohibit an item or object that: a) is likely to cause a substantial disruption of, or material interference with 
the graduation ceremony, or b) replaces a cap or gown customarily worn at a graduation ceremony. 

3 [See letter from ODE regarding Graduation Ceremonies (click on [Year] Graduation Ceremonies).] {This could cause some 
controversy. OSBA recommends communicating with community cultural leaders and high school administration prior to 
adopting this language. If one group of students is allowed to wear an item of cultural significance, the same rule must be 
applied to other students in a non-discriminatory manner.}  

 
Page 106



11/06/2010/05/21│RS Graduation Exercises – IKFB 
2-2 

 

 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.451 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 339.505 
ORS 343.295 
 

OAR 581-021-0050 
OAR 581-021-0055 
OAR 581-021-0060 
OAR 581-022-2000 
OAR 581-022-2010 

OAR 581-022-2015 
OAR 581-022-2020 
OAR 581-022-2505

 
31 OR. ATTY. GEN. OP. 428 (1964) 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2018); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2020). 
Kay v. David Douglas Sch. Dist. No. 40,1987); cert. den., 484 U.S. 1032 (1988). 
Doe v. Madison Sch. Dist. No. 321, 177 F.3d 789 (9th Cir. 1999). 
Lee v. Weisman, 505 U.S. 577 (1992). 
Hazelwood Sch. Dist. v. Kuhlmeier, 484 U.S. 260 (1988). 

 
Page 107

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8 
 

Finance Reports 

 
Page 108



 

BOARD 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To: The Honorable Chair and Members 
 Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors 
 
From: William H. Lewis III, Business Director 
 
Date: April 7, 2022   Meeting Date:  April 14, 2022 
 
Re: Financial Report and Fiscal Updates 
 
 
 
Financial Report 
 
The 2021-2022 Financial Board Report included in this packet reflects all revenues and 
expenditures for 2015-2021 and the budgeted YTD expenditures, plus encumbered amounts for 
2021-2022 as of 3/02/22.  
 
2020-21 Audit Report- Lebanon’s 2020-21 audit is complete and administration has been 
debriefed on its results by our auditors. The audit report is working through the final compliance 
review at our audit firm. The State of Oregon had a large last-minute adjustment to the audit 
process across the state, which has slowed the process. 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 109



 2021-22 General Fund Revenue Report

18/19 19/20 20-21 | 21-22 4-07-22 4-07-22
 Actual Actual Budget | Budget YTD Balance

||
SSF Formula |

1111, Taxes 10,179,205  10,509,179     10,938,094     | 11,873,719     11,162,762  710,957         
4801,4899 Federal Forest Fees 179,478       157,804          130,000          | 125,000          -               125,000         
3103 Common School 437,082       196,120          400,000          | 444,819          437,986       6,833             
2101 County School 209,250          200,000          | 195,000          24,871         170,129         
3104 State Timber 167,048       23,587            100,000          | 100,000          115,423       (15,423)         
3101/3199 School Support Fund 29,101,930  30,942,140     31,791,963     | 31,702,011     26,756,189  4,945,822      

Adjustments to SSF Payments | -                
    Adj for Prior Year payments (755,646)      | -                
    Adj for HC Disability Grant 439,748       -                  -                  | -                  -               -                

Total SSF Formula 39,748,844  42,038,081     43,560,057     | 44,440,549     38,497,231  5,943,318      
|

1510 Interest on Investments 385,564       320,317          250,000          | 150,000          66,157         83,843           
| -                

4200 Third Party billing 72,372         -                  -                  | -                  -               -                
| -                

2210 TMR 180,556       212,376          210,000          | 210,000          85,313         124,687         
| -                

4300 JROTC reimbursement 35,236         77,982            65,000            | 65,000            48,581         16,419           
| -                

Other | -                
1741 Outdoor School -                  -                  | -                  -               -                
1910 Rental Fees 3,926           1,582              7,500              | 5,000              -               5,000             
1980 Fees Charged to Grants -               14,915            50,000            | 108,266          86,606         21,660           
1312, 
1960,
 1990, 
5300 Miscellaneous 370,469       304,781          250,000          | 255,000          126,844       128,156         
1760 Club Fundraising -                  -                  | -                  -               -                
1411, 1993 Transportation Fees 4,538              -                  | -                  -               -                
1994 E-Rate reimbursement -               -                  80,000            | -                  12,855         (12,855)         

| -                
5200 Interfund Transfer - Athletics 8,029           850,000          -                  | -                  -               -                

| -                
5400 Beginning Fund Balance 5,263,314    2,126,603       3,784,307       | 5,065,000       6,205,654    (1,140,654)    | -                

Total 46,068,310  45,951,175     48,256,864     | 50,298,816     45,129,241  5,169,575      
======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

 
Page 110



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

  

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 4-07-22 4-07-22 4-07-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

|
Certified salaries 12,295,790 12,665,056 12,540,564 | 12,871,079 7,519,886 5,291,315 59,878
Classified salaries 5,554,869 6,227,931 6,008,791 | 6,250,523 3,661,442 2,044,173 544,908
Administrative salaries 1,782,092 1,873,807 1,863,955 | 2,059,820 1,555,845 517,134 (13,159)
Managerial - classified 249,120 154,577 289,051 | 299,689 293,846 125,364 (119,521)
Retirement stipends 19,904 91,904 133,413 | 120,000 70,000 50,000 0
Confidential salaries 159,789 162,808 284,898 | 343,800 279,115 94,861 (30,176)
Certified subs 43,660 2,000 0 | 14,294 0 0 14,294
Classified subs 43,138 1,500 23,975 | 0 0 0 0
Temp certified 162,287 82,264 45,425 | 0 25,831 422 (26,253)
Temp classified 23,111 8,000 21,658 | 481 12,298 0 (11,817)
Student helpers salaries 4,413 21,000 16,654 | 5,748 12,632 0 (6,884)
Overtime 50,768 0 91,513 | 57,127 40,449 1,866 14,812
Compensation time 77,738 52,300 44,207 | 71,883 31,488 0 40,395
Extra duty 350,933 279,579 128,295 | 230,761 137,956 0 92,805
Classified extra hrs 200,393 208,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Vacation Payoff 14,017 29,817 24,292 | 28,240 34,161 0 (5,921)
Mentor teacher pay 0 0 0 | 0 985 0 (985)
Personal Leave Payout 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Department Head Extra Duty 788 6,000 30,000 | 0 0 0 0
Taxable Meal Reimbursement 2,073 0 809 | 2,000 531 0 1,469
Cell Phone Stipend 0 1,080 | 1,080 450 0 630
Travel Stipend 0 11,400 | 0 20,175 6,725 (26,900)
Club Advisor 34,950 29,650 120,904 | 169,964 126,045 62,002 (18,083)

Total Salaries 21,069,833 21,896,193 21,680,883 | 22,526,487 13,823,135 8,193,862 509,490

PERS 5,753,639 7,398,130 7,286,664 | 6,797,646 3,939,500 2,384,889 473,257
Social Security 1,544,838 1,655,388 1,642,024 | 1,627,475 1,015,613 602,618 9,244
Worker's Comp 210,272 293,025 275,747 | 189,328 81,483 40,567 67,278
Employee Ins - Admin 239,427 215,642 275,263 | 283,669 217,508 78,849 (12,688)
Employee Ins - Certified 2,829,522 2,449,421 2,756,998 | 2,840,563 1,672,396 1,194,673 (26,506)
Employee Ins - Classified 2,408,513 2,327,520 2,596,579 | 2,598,694 1,510,006 912,115 176,573
Employee Ins - Other 36,487 33,429 65,298 | 92,498 54,383 18,102 20,013
Employee Ins - Retired 120,255 83,600 52,700 | 120,000 23,330 0 96,670
TSA 24,336 25,200 45,600 | 45,600 34,200 11,400 0
Staff Tuition Reimbursement 0 0 90,000 | 2,500 0 0 2,500
Employee Tuition (9,525) 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Total Benefits 13,157,764 14,481,355 15,086,873 | 14,597,973 8,548,419 5,243,213 806,341

 
Page 111



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 4-07-22 4-07-22 4-07-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

Instructional Services 125,368 103,800 76,375 | 66,000 132,359 47,172 (113,531)
Instr Prog Improve Service 33,042 53,000 67,750 | 87,750 32,099 0 55,651
Student SVCS 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Data Processing SVCS 0 0 0 | 3,000 0 0 3,000

0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Professional and Improvement Costs for Non-Insturctional0 0 0 | 15,000 0 0 15,000
Other Instr-Prof-Tech SVCS 11,205 20,000 10,000 | 11,500 48,958 26,320 (63,778)
Cleaning SVCS 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Repairs & Maintenance 206,884 190,300 227,612 | 258,500 202,213 18,725 37,562
Radio Service 12,455 11,100 11,100 | 15,000 0 0 15,000
Rentals 121,067 129,400 88,286 | 86,300 52,663 15,183 18,454
Electricity 453,206 502,620 465,700 | 451,500 281,345 109,289 60,866
Fuel 181,534 223,135 217,800 | 208,100 146,952 36,238 24,910
Water & Sewer 138,029 153,520 142,500 | 146,700 104,438 0 42,262
Garbage 112,864 102,400 87,000 | 106,500 71,370 0 35,130
Other Property Services 3,500 20,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Reimb. Student Transportation 4,658 10,200 29,900 | 34,500 164,997 5,786 (136,283)
Reimb. Student Transportation (79,915) 0 0 0
Travel 163,937 158,263 150,513 | 153,011 67,318 1,362 84,331
Travel - Local 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Travel - Out of District 37 0 0 | 0 0 0
Travel - Student - Out of Dist. 1,140 5,300 4,500 | 3,500 0 0 3,500
Classified Staff Training 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Travel - Other 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Meals/Transportation 153 200 350 | 350 0 0 350
Mileage/Transportation 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Staff Tuition 92,746 47,000 2,000 | 72,000 35,838 0 36,162

0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Telephone 44,987 73,165 65,100 | 52,300 46,964 11,106 (5,770)
Postage 24,224 26,074 28,900 | 32,117 17,302 12,681 2,134
Advertising 2,761 4,300 2,650 | 3,500 8,721 0 (5,221)
Printing & Binding 13,712 29,400 30,950 | 31,700 28,693 1,861 1,146
Other Communication Services 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Charter School Payments 2,159,564 2,195,000 2,300,000 | 2,400,000 2,049,746 550,254 (200,000)
Insurance Reimbursement 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Tuitions Payments to Other Dist. 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Tuition Pay Private School 0 5,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Other Tuition 240,090 92,500 90,000 | 115,000 7,968 0 107,032
Audit Services 29,150 30,000 39,000 | 36,000 0 0 36,000
Legal Services 33,971 35,000 35,000 | 35,000 7,562 0 27,438
Architect/Engineer Service 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Negotiation Services 0 10,000 5,000 | 1,000 0 0 1,000
Management Services 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Data Processing SVCS 65,278 89,600 65,000 | 57,500 37,587 0 19,913
Statistical Services 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Election Services 4,632 5,000 5,000 | 18,000 0 0 18,000

 
Page 112



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 4-07-22 4-07-22 4-07-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance
Other Non_instr Pro/Tech 447,701 363,700 351,450 | 402,650 419,609 48,039 (64,998)
Other General Prof & Tech Srvs (722) 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Physical Exams - Drivers 4,072 4,400 5,750 | 5,500 5,866 0 (366)
Drug Tests Drivers 1,670 3,000 2,250 | 3,000 495 1,505 1,000
Child Care Services 0 15,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Sub calling service 14,113 15,000 12,000 | 7,500 0 0 7,500
Classified subs 226,030 194,000 228,600 | 251,500 41,969 0 209,531
Criminal History checks 3,394 3,200 3,500 | 3,500 708 0 2,792

0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Fingerprinting 626 1,000 2,500 | 1,000 446 0 554

Classified subs 499,112 425,000 445,791 | 510,573 269,513 0 241,060
Total P. Services 5,396,276 5,349,577 5,299,827 | 5,686,551 4,283,699 885,521 517,331

 
Page 113



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 4-07-22 4-07-22 4-07-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

Gas Oil & Lubricants 185,324 190,500 189,100 | 192,000 141,469 31,604 18,927
Vehicle Fuel/Transportation 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Supplies & Materials 457,850 648,024 651,837 | 698,023 530,696 34,753 132,574
0 0 | 0 0 0 0
0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Vehicle repair parts 27,649 52,800 50,500 | 50,500 30,580 16,845 3,075
Transportation operations 30,665 15,000 25,000 | 25,000 15,968 4,313 4,719

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
| 0 0 0

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Office Supplies/Transportation 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Transportation - Tires 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Textbooks 68,642 28,033 9,933 | 5,433 10,870 386 (5,823)
Library Books 5,914 15,694 8,200 | 11,700 7,923 0 3,777
Periodicals 6,511 6,000 10,800 | 12,100 10,440 5,398 (3,738)
Equipment under 5K 160,140 178,842 146,100 | 125,550 46,883 2,605 76,062
Computer software 184,472 264,360 257,398 | 323,918 260,734 9,158 54,026
Computer hardware 142,441 170,593 181,265 | 162,359 62,867 1,460 98,032

   
Total Supplies & Materials 1,269,608 1,569,846 1,530,133 | 1,606,583 1,118,430 106,522 381,631

Buildings Acquisition 0 0 25,000 7,699.68 17,436.00 (136)
Improvements Other Than Buildings 0 28,615.00 0.00 (28,615)
Equipment 33,623 54,500 25,000 | 45,000 0.00 0.00 45,000
New Equipment over 5K 35,353 0 45,000 | 10,000 46,627.00 0.00 (36,627)
Replace of Equip over 5K 0 20,000 | 20,000 169,701.00 29,100.00 (178,801)
Depreciable Technology 7,579 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bus Replacement 0 0 0 | 0 0.00 0 0

Total Capital Outlay 76,554 54,500 90,000 | 100,000 252,643 46,536 (199,179)

Regular Interest 0 500 0 | 0 0 0 0
0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Dues & Fees 105,393 175,180 159,726 | 148,076 73,910 204 73,962
Insurance & Judgments 245,279 265,588 306,221 | 350,000 358,911 24 (8,935)

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Fidelity Bond Premiums 0 0 | 0 100 0 (100)
Property Insurance Premium 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Judgments & Settlements 0 2,500 | 3,000 0 0 3,000
Settlements 0 0 | 0 985 0 (985)

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Taxes & Licenses 0 200 700 | 700 985 0 (285)

0 | 0 0 0 0
Total Other Objects 350,672 441,468 469,147 | 501,776 434,891 228 66,657

 
Page 114



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 4-07-22 4-07-22 4-07-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

Transfer -  Vocational House Fund 40,000 0 70,000 | 250,000 250,000 0 0
Transfer - Technology 100,000 0 80,000 | 100,000 100,000 0 0
Transfer - Classroom Furniture 50,000 0 10,000 | 35,000 35,000 0 0
Transfer - Textbook Adoption 400,000 400,000 200,000 | 350,000 350,000 0 0
Transfer - Capital Improvement 400,000 200,000 | 300,000 300,000 0 0
Transfer - Track and Turf Fund 85,000 10,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Transfer - Athletic Fund 446,000 450,000 475,000 | 475,000 475,000 0 0
Transfer - Bus Replacement 300,000 150,000 225,000 | 225,000 225,000 0 0
Transfer - Unemploy Ins 25,000 25,000 250,000 | 0 0 0 0
Transfer - OHC Fund 0 | 0 0 0 0
PERS Reserve 525,000 0 450,000 | 300,000 300,000 0 0
Transfer - Food Service 100,000 100,000 120,000 | 224,446 0 0 224,446
Transfer - Music/Band Replacement 0 0 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 0
Transfer - Debt Service 150,000 50,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Transfer  - Academic Achievement 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Total Transfers 2,621,000 1,185,000 2,100,000 | 2,279,446 2,055,000 0 224,446
|  

Reserve/Contingency 0 1,750,000 2,000,000 | 3,000,000 0 0 3,000,000
 |

Grand Total 43,941,707 46,727,940 48,256,864 | 50,298,816 30,516,216 14,475,882 5,306,718
========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= =========

 
Page 115



| 18/19 19/20 | 20-21 21-22 04-07-22 04-07-22
| Actual Actual | Budget Budget YTD & Enc Balance

General Fund - Revenue | |
|

SSF Formula | 39,748,844  42,038,081  | 43,560,057  44,440,549  38,497,231     5,943,318     
SSF Adjustment | -               | -               -                  -                
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund -               | -               -                  -                
Federal Ed Jobs -               | -               -                  -                
School Year SubAccount -               | -               -                  -                
Loan Receipts -               | -               -                  -                
Interest | 385,564       320,317       | 250,000       150,000       66,157            83,843          
Third Party Billing | 72,372         -               | -               -               -                  -                
TMR | 180,556       212,376       | 210,000       210,000       85,313            124,687        
JROTC | 35,236         77,982         | 65,000         65,000         48,581            16,419          
Other | 374,395       325,816       | 387,500       368,266       226,305          141,961        
Interfund Transfer | 8,029           850,000       | -               -                  -                
BFB | 5,263,314    2,126,603    | 3,784,307    5,065,000    6,205,654       (1,140,654)    

Total | 46,068,310  45,951,175  | 48,256,864  50,298,816  45,129,241     5,169,575     
======== | ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== ========

|
General Fund - Expenses |

|
Salaries | 21,069,833  21,896,193  | 21,680,883  22,526,487  22,016,997     509,490        
Benefits | 13,157,764  14,481,355  | 15,086,873  14,597,973  13,791,632     806,341        
P. Services | 5,396,276    5,349,577    | 5,299,827    5,686,551    5,169,220       517,331        
Supplies | 1,269,608    1,569,846    | 1,530,133    1,606,583    1,224,952       381,631        
Capital Outlay | 76,554         54,500         | 90,000         100,000       299,179          (199,179)       
Other Objects | 350,672       441,468       | 469,147       501,776       435,119          66,657          
Transfers | 2,621,000    1,185,000    | 2,100,000    2,279,446    2,055,000       224,446        
Contingency | -               1,750,000    | 2,000,000    3,000,000    -                  3,000,000     

Total | 43,941,707  46,727,940  | 48,256,864  50,298,816  44,992,098     5,306,718     
======== | ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== ========

 
Page 116


	April 14, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	agenda item 4
	9-12 ELA Adoption Process Timeline (SB)
	agenda item 5
	Summer School planning update, 4-14-22
	agenda item 6
	22-23Draft AMENDED
	agenda item 7a
	March 10, 2022 DRAFT Meeting Minutes
	March 10, 2022 DRAFT meeting minutes
	Piland oath (attach to March minutes)
	Supt Recommendations (attach to March minutes)

	agenda item 7b
	ACB G1 sch
	ACB R G1 sch
	GBL G1
	1. The individual employee. An employee may arrange with the personnel office to inspect the contents of their personnel file on any day the personnel office is open for business;
	2. Others designated by the employee in writing may arrange to inspect the contents of the employee’s personnel file in the same manner described above;
	3. The comptroller or auditor, when such inspection is pertinent to carrying out their respective duties, or as otherwise specifically authorized by the Board. Information so obtained will be kept confidential. No files will be removed from their cent...
	4. A Board member when specifically authorized by the Board. Information will be kept confidential. No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection;
	5. The superintendent and members of the central administrative staff designated by the superintendent;
	6. District administrators and supervisors who currently or prospectively supervise the employee;
	7. Employees of the personnel office;
	8. Attorneys for the district or the district’s designated representative on matters of district business;
	9. Upon receiving a request from a prospective employer issued under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 339.374(1)(b), the district, pursuant to ORS 339.378(1), shall disclose the requested information if it has or has had an employment relationship with a ...
	10. Upon request from a law enforcement agency, the Oregon Department of Human Services, the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission, or the Oregon Department of Education, in conducting an investigation related to suspected abuse or suspected sexu...
	11. Upon request from a prospective employer or a former employee, authorized district officials may disclose information about a former employee’s job performance to a prospective employer and such disclosure is presumed to be in good faith. Presumpt...

	IGBAF R G1
	(i) Regarding employment planning, the parent shall be provided information about and opportunities to experience employment services provided by Oregon Vocational Rehabilitation or the Oregon Office of Developmental Disability Services. These service...
	e. To promote self-determination and independence, the district shall provide the student and the student’s parents with information and training resources regarding supported decision-making as a less restrictive alternative to guardianship, and with...

	IGBAG R G1
	1. Procedural Safeguards
	a. The district provides procedural safeguards to:
	(1) Parents, guardians (unless the guardian is a state agency) or persons in parental relationship to the student;
	(2) Surrogate parents; and
	(3) Students who have reached the age of 18, the age of majority or are considered emancipated under Oregon law and to whom rights have transferred by statute, identified as adult students (called “eligible students”).

	b. The district gives parents a copy of the Procedural Safeguards Notice, published by the Oregon Department of Education (ODE):
	(1) At least once a year;
	(2) At the first referral or parental request for evaluation to determine eligibility for special education services;
	(3) When the parent (or adult student) requests a copy; and
	(4) To the parent and the student one year before the student’s 18th birthday or upon learning that the student is emancipated.

	c. The Procedural Safeguards Notice is:
	(1) Provided written in the native language or other communication of the parents (unless it is clearly not feasible to do so) and in language clearly understandable to the public.
	(2) If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written language, the district takes steps to ensure that:
	(a) The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in his/her their native language or other mode of communication;
	(b) The parent understands the content of the notice; and
	(c) There is written evidence that the district has met these requirements.



	2. Content of Procedural Safeguards Notice
	3. Parent or Adult Student Meeting Participation
	a. The district provides parents or adult students an opportunity to participate in meetings with respect to the identification, evaluation, individualized education program (IEP) and educational placement of the student, and the provision of a free a...
	b. The district provides parents or adult students written notice of any meeting sufficiently in advance to ensure an opportunity to attend. The written notice:
	(1) States the purpose, time and place of the meeting and who is invited to attend;
	(2) Advises that parents or adult students may invite other individuals who they believe have knowledge or special expertise regarding the student;
	(3) Advises the parents or adult student that the team may proceed with the meeting even if they are not in attendance;
	(4) Advises the parent or adult students who to contact before the meeting to provide information if they are unable to attend; and
	(5) Indicates if one of the meeting’s purposes is to consider transition services or transition service needs. If so:
	(a) Indicates that the student will be invited; and
	(b) Identifies any agencies invited to send a representative.


	c. The district takes steps to ensure that one or both of the parents of a student with a disability are present at each IEP or placement meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate, including:
	(1) Notifying parents of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have an opportunity to attend; and
	(2) Scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed on time and place.

	d. If neither parent can participate, the district will use other methods to ensure participation, including, but not limited to, individual or conference phone calls or home visits.
	e. The district may conduct an evaluation planning or eligibility meeting without the parent or adult student if the district provided meeting notice to the parent or adult student sufficiently in advance to ensure an opportunity to attend.
	f. The district may conduct an IEP or placement meeting without the parent or adult student if the district is unable to convince the parents or adult students that they should participate. Attempts to convince the parent to participate will be consid...
	(1) Communicates directly with the parent or adult student and arranges a mutually agreeable time and place and sends written notice to confirm the arrangement; or
	(2) Proposes a time and place in the written notice stating that a different time and place might be requested and confirms that the notice was received.

	g. If the district proceeds with an IEP meeting without a parent or adult student, the district must have a record of its attempts to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place such as:
	(1) Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls;
	(2) Copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses received; and
	(3) Detailed records of visits made to the parents’ home or place of employment and the results of those visits.

	h. The district takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parent or adult student understands the proceedings at a meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents or adult students who are deaf or whose native language is other...
	i. After the transfer of rights to an adult student at the age of majority, the district provides written notice of meetings to the adult student and parent, if the parent can be reasonably located. After the transfer of rights to an adult student at ...
	j. An IEP meeting does not include:
	(1) Informal or unscheduled conversations involving district personnel;
	(2) Conversations on issues such as teaching methodology, lesson plans or coordination of service provision if those issues are not addressed in the student’s IEP; or
	(3) Preparatory activities that district or public personnel engage in to develop a proposal or response to a parent proposal that will be discussed at a later meeting.


	4. Surrogate Parents
	a. The district protects the rights of a student with a disability, or suspected of having a disability, by appointing a surrogate parent when:
	(1) The parent cannot be identified or located after reasonable efforts;
	(2) The student is a ward of the state or an unaccompanied homeless youth and there is reasonable cause to believe that the student has a disability, and there is no foster parent or other person available who can act as the parent of the student; or
	(3) The parent or adult student requests the appointment of a surrogate parent.

	b. The district secures nominations of persons to serve as surrogates. The district appoints surrogates within 30 days of a determination that the student needs a surrogate, unless a surrogate has already been appointed by juvenile court.
	c. The district will only appoint a surrogate who:
	(1) Is not an employee of the district or ODE;
	(2) Is not an employee of any other agency involved in the education or care of the student;
	(3) Is free of any personal or professional interest that would interfere with representing the student’s special education interests; and
	(4) Has the necessary knowledge and skills that ensure adequate representation of the student in special education decisions. The district will provide training, as necessary, to ensure that surrogate parents have the requisite knowledge.

	d. The district provides all special education rights and procedural safeguards to appointed surrogate parents.
	e. A surrogate will not be considered an employee of the district solely on the basis that the surrogate is compensated from public funds.
	f. The duties of the surrogate parent are to:
	(1) Protect the special education rights of the student;
	(2) Be acquainted with the student’s disability and the student’s special education needs;
	(3) Represent the student in all matters relating to the identification, evaluation, IEP and educational placement of the student; and
	(4) Represent the student in all matters relating to the provision of FAPE to the student.

	g. A parent may give written consent for a surrogate to be appointed.
	(1) When a parent requests that a surrogate be appointed, the parent shall retain all parental rights to receive notice and all of the information provided to the surrogate. When the district appoints a surrogate at parent request, the district will c...
	(2) The surrogate, alone, shall be responsible for all matters relating to the special education of the student. The district will treat the surrogate as the parent unless and until the parent revokes consent for the surrogate’s appointment.
	(3) If a parent gives written consent for a surrogate to be appointed, the parent may revoke consent at any time by providing a written request to revoke the surrogate’s appointment.

	h. An adult student to whom rights have transferred at age of majority may give written consent for a surrogate to be appointed. When an adult student requests that a surrogate be appointed, the student shall retain all rights to receive notice and al...
	i. The district may change or terminate the appointment of a surrogate when:
	(1) The person appointed as surrogate is no longer willing to serve;
	(2) Rights transfer to the adult student or the student graduates with a regular diploma;
	(3) The student is no longer eligible for special education services;
	(4) The legal guardianship of the student is transferred to a person who is able to carry out the role of the parent;
	(5) A foster parent or other person is identified who can carry out the role of parent;
	(6) The parent, who previously could not be identified or located, is now identified or located;
	(7) The appointed surrogate is no longer eligible;
	(8) The student moves to another district; or
	(9) The student is no longer a ward of the state or unaccompanied homeless youth.

	j. The district will not appoint a surrogate solely because the parent or student to whom rights have transferred is uncooperative or unresponsive to the special education needs of the student.

	5. Transfer of Rights at Age of Majority
	a. When a student with a disability reaches the age of majority, marries or is emancipated, rights previously accorded to the student’s parents under the special education laws, transfer to the student. A student for whom rights have transferred is co...
	b. The district provides notice to the student and the parent that rights (accorded by statute) will transfer at the age of majority. This notice is provided at an IEP meeting and documented on the IEP:
	(1) At least one year before the student’s 18th birthday;
	(2) More than one year before the student’s 18th birthday, if the student’s IEP team determines that earlier notice will aid transition; or
	(3) Upon actual knowledge that within a year the student will likely marry or become emancipated before age 18.

	c. The district provides written notice to the student and to the parent at the time of the transfer.
	d. These requirements apply to all students, including students who are incarcerated in a state or local adult or juvenile correctional facility or jail.
	e. After transfer of rights to the student, the district provides any written prior notices and written notices of meetings required by the special education laws to the adult student and to the parent if the parent can be reasonably located.
	f. After rights have transferred to the student, receipt of notice of an IEP meeting does not entitle the parent to attend the meeting unless invited by the student or the district.
	g. To promote self-determination and independence, the district shall provide the student and the student’s parents with information and training resources regarding supported decision-making as a less restrictive alternative to guardianship, and with...

	6. Prior Written Notice
	a. The district provides prior written notice to the parent of a student, or student, within a reasonable period of time, before the district:
	(1) Proposes to initiate or change, the identification, evaluation or educational placement of the student, or the provision of a FAPE to the child; or
	(2) Refuses to initiate or change the identification, evaluation or educational placement of the student, or the provision of a FAPE to the child.

	b. The content of the prior written notice will include:
	(1) A description of the action proposed or refused by the district;
	(2) An explanation of why the district proposed or refused to take the action;
	(3) A description of each evaluation procedure, test, assessment, record or report used as a basis for the proposal or refusal;
	(4) A statement that the parents of a student with a disability have procedural safeguards and, if this notice is not an initial referral for evaluation, how a copy of the Procedural Safeguards Notice may be obtained;
	(5) Sources for parents to contact to obtain assistance in understanding their procedural safeguards;
	(6) A description of other options the IEP team considered and the reasons why those options were rejected; and
	(7) A description of other factors that are relevant to the agency’s proposal or refusal.

	c. The prior written notice is:
	(1) Written in language understandable to the general public; and
	(2) Provided in the native language of the parent or other mode of communication used by the parent, unless it is clearly not feasible to do so;
	(3) If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written language, the district shall take steps to ensure that:
	(a) The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in the parent’s native language or other mode of communication;
	(b) The parent understands the content of the notice; and
	(c) There is written evidence that the requirements of this rule have been met.



	7. ConsentP0F P – Initial Evaluation
	a. The district provides notice and obtains informed written consent from the parent or adult student before conducting an initial evaluation to determine whether a student has a disability (as defined by Oregon law) and needs special education. Conse...
	b. The district makes reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent from a parent for an initial evaluation to determine a child’s eligibility for special education services. If a parent does not provide consent for an initial evaluation or does not r...

	8. Consent – Initial Provision of Special Education Services
	a. The district provides notice and obtains informed written consent from the parent or adult student before the initial provision of special education and related services to the student.
	b. The district makes reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent, but if a parent or adult student does not respond or refuses consent for initial provision of special education and related services, the district does not convene an IEP meeting, de...

	9. Consent – Re-evaluation
	a. The district obtains informed parent consent before conducting any re-evaluation of a child with a disability, except:
	(1) The district does not need written consent for a re-evaluation if the parent does not respond after reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent. However, the district does not conduct individual intelligence tests or tests of personality without...
	(2) If a parent refuses to consent to the re-evaluation, the district may, but is not required to, pursue the re-evaluation by using mediation or due process hearing procedures.

	b. A parent or adult student may revoke consent at any time before the completion of the activity for which they have given consent. If a parent or adult student revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive.

	10. Consent – Other Requirements
	a. The district documents its reasonable efforts to obtain parent consent, such as phone calls, letters and meeting notes.
	b. If a parent of a student who is home schooled or enrolled by the parents in a private school does not provide consent for the initial evaluation or the re-evaluation, or if the parent does not respond to a request for consent, the district:
	(1) Does not use mediation or due process hearing procedures to seek consent; and
	(2) Does not consider the child as eligible for special education services.

	c. If a parent or adult student refuses consent for one service or activity, the district does not use this refusal to deny the parent or child any other service, benefit or activity, except as specified by these rules and procedures.
	d. If, at any time subsequent to the initial provision of special and related services, the parent of a child revokes consent in writing for the continued provision of special education and related services, the district:
	(1) May not continue to provide special education and related services to the child, but must provide prior written notice before ceasing the provision of special education and related services;
	(2) May not use mediation or due process procedures to obtain an agreement or ruling that the services may be provided to the child;
	(3) The district will not be considered to be in violation of the requirement to make FAPE available to the child because of the failure to provide the child with further special education and related services; and
	(4) The district is not required to convene an IEP team meeting or develop an IEP for the child for further provision of special education or related services.


	11. Exceptions to Consent
	a. The district does not need written parent or adult student consent before:
	(1) Reviewing existing data as part of an evaluation or re-evaluation;
	(2) Administering a test or other evaluation administered to all students without consent unless, before administration of that test or evaluation, consent is required of parents of all students;
	(3) Conducting evaluations, tests, procedures or instruments that are identified on the student’s individualized education program (IEP) as a measure for determining progress; or
	(4) Conducting a screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional strategies for curriculum implementation.

	b. The district does not need written parent consent to conduct an initial special education evaluation of a student who is a ward of the state and not living with the parent if:
	(1) Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the district has not been able to find the parent;
	(2) The parent’s rights have been terminated in accordance with state law; or
	(3) The rights of the parent to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a judge in accordance with state law and consent for an initial evaluation has been given by an individual appointed by the judge to represent the child.

	c. The district does not need written parental consent if an administrative law judge (ALJ) determines that the evaluation or re-evaluation is necessary to ensure that the student is provided with a free appropriate public education.

	12. Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE)
	a. A parent of a student with a disability has a right to an independent educational evaluation at public expense if the parent disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the district.
	b. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation at public expense, the district provides information to parents about where an independent educational evaluation may be obtained, and the district criteria applicable for independent educa...
	c. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation at public expense, the district, without unnecessary delay, either:
	(1) Initiates a due process hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate; or
	(2) Ensures that an independent educational evaluation is provided at public expense unless the district demonstrates in a hearing that the evaluation obtained by the parent did not meet district criteria.

	d. The district criteria for independent educational evaluations are the same as for district evaluations including, but not limited to, location, examiner qualifications and cost.
	(1) Criteria established by the district do not preclude the parent’s access to an independent educational evaluation.
	(2) The district provides the parents the opportunity to demonstrate the unique circumstances justifying an IEE that does not meet the district’s criteria.
	(3) A parent may be limited to one independent educational evaluation at public expense each time the district conducts an evaluation with which the parent disagrees.

	e. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation, the district may ask why the parent disagrees with the public evaluation. The parent may, but is not required to provide an explanation. The district may not:
	(1) Unreasonably delay either providing the independent educational evaluation at public expense or initiating a due process hearing to defend the public evaluation;
	(2) Except for the criteria listed above in c., impose conditions or timelines related to obtaining an IEE at public expense.

	f. The district considers an independent educational evaluation submitted by the parent, in any decision made with respect to the provision of a free appropriate public education to the student, if the submitted independent evaluation meets district c...

	13. Dispute Resolution – Mediation
	a. The district or parent may request mediation from ODE for any special education matter, including before the filing of a complaint or due process hearing request.
	b. The district acknowledges that:
	(1) Mediation must be voluntary on the part of the parties, must be conducted by a qualified and impartial mediator who is trained in effective mediation techniques and may not be used to deny or delay a parent’s right to a due process hearing or fili...
	(2) Each mediation session must be scheduled in a timely manner and must be held in a location that is convenient to the parties to the dispute.
	(3) An agreement reached by the parties to the dispute in the mediation process must be set forth in a legally binding written mediation agreement that:
	(a) States the terms of the agreement;
	(b) States that all discussions that occurred during the mediation process remain confidential and may not be used as evidence in any subsequent due process hearing or civil proceeding; and
	(c) Is signed by the parent and a representative of the district who has the authority to bind the district to the mediation agreement.

	(4) Mediation communication is not confidential if it relates to child or elder abuse and is made to a person who is required to report abuse, or threats of physical harm, or professional conduct affecting licensure.
	(5) The mediation agreement is enforceable in any state court of competent jurisdiction or in a district court of the United States.


	14. Dispute Resolution – Complaint Investigation
	a. Any organization or person may file a signed, written complaint with the State Superintendent of Public Instruction alleging that a district or education service district (ESD) is violating or has violated the Individuals with Disabilities Educatio...
	b. Upon receiving a request for response from ODE, the district responds to the allegations and furnishes any requested information or documents within 10 business days.
	c. The district sends a copy of the response to the complainant. If ODE decides to conduct an on-site investigation, district personnel participate in interviews and provide additional documents as needed.
	d. The district and the complainant may attempt to resolve a disagreement that led to a complaint through mediation. If they decide against mediation, or if mediation fails to produce an agreement, ODE will pursue the complaint investigation.
	e. If ODE substantiates some or all of the allegations in a complaint, it will order corrective action. The district satisfies its corrective action obligations in a timely manner.
	f. If the district disagrees with the findings and conclusions in a complaint final order, it may seek reconsideration by ODE or judicial review in county circuit court.

	15. Due Process Hearing Requests
	a. The district acknowledges that parents may request a due process hearing if they disagree with a district proposal or refusal relating to the identification, evaluation, educational placement or provision of a free appropriate education to a studen...
	b. The district may request a due process hearing regarding the identification, evaluation, educational placement or provision of a free appropriate education to a student who may have a disability and be eligible for special education.
	c. When requesting a due process hearing, the district or the attorney representing the district provides notice to the parent and to ODE.
	d. The party, including the district, that did not file the hearing request must, within 10 days of receiving the request for a hearing, send to the other party a response that specifically addresses the issues raised in the hearing request.
	e. If the parent had not yet received prior written notice of the district’s proposal or refusal, the district, within 10 days of receiving the hearing request for a due process hearing, sends to the parent a response that includes:
	(1) An explanation of why the district proposed or refused to take the action raised in the hearing request;
	(2) A description of other options that the district considered and the reasons why those options were rejected;
	(3) A description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record or report the district used as the basis for the proposed or refused action; and
	(4) A description of the factors relevant to the district’s proposal or refusal.


	16. Resolution Session
	a. Within 15 days of receiving a due process hearing request, the district will hold a resolution session with the parents and the relevant members of the IEP team who have specific knowledge of the facts identified in the due process hearing request.
	b. This meeting will include a representative of the district who has decision-making authority for the district.
	(1) The district will not include an attorney unless the parent brings an attorney.
	(2) The district will provide the parent with an opportunity for the parent to discuss the hearing request and related facts so that the district has an opportunity to resolve the dispute.
	(3) The district and parent may agree in writing to waive the resolution meeting. If so, the 45-day hearing timeline will begin the next business day, unless the district and parent agree to try mediation in lieu of the resolution session.


	17. Time Limitations and Exception
	a. A parent must request a due process hearing within two years after the date of the district act or omission that gives rise to the parent’s hearing request.
	b. This timeline does not apply to a parent if the district withheld relevant information from the parent or incorrectly informed the parent that it had resolved the problem that led the parent’s hearing request.

	18. Hearing Costs
	a. The district reimburses ODE for costs related to conducting the hearing, including pre-hearing conferences, scheduling arrangement and other related matters.
	b. The district provides the parent with a written or, at the option of the parent, an electronic verbatim recording of the hearing, within a reasonable time of the close of the hearing
	c. The district does not use IDEA funds to pay attorney’s fees or other hearing costs.

	19. Discipline and Placement in Interim Alternative Setting

	IGBB G1
	IGBHA G1
	IGBHA R 1 G1
	1. Have criminal records checks requirements been met?
	1. Are students receiving instruction in the state academic content standards and earning diploma credits?
	2. Are Oregon Sstatewide Aassessments administered and the results reported annually to students, parents and the district?
	3. Are students receiving, at least annually, a report of academic progress?
	4. Does the program meet the physical education requirements of Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 329.496?
	1. Does the program comply with nondiscrimination requirements of law? (Program does not discriminate based on age, disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, race, color, marital status, religion or sex)
	1. Is the program registered with the ODE?
	1. Does the program comply with health and safety statutes and rules?
	1. Does the program comply with Oregon Revised Statutes regarding tuition and fees (ORS 337.150, 339.141, 339.147, 339.155)?
	1. The program complies with any statute, rule or district policy specified in the contract with the [public or] private alternative education program.
	2. Does the contract with the [public or] private alternative education program state that noncompliance with a rule or statute may result in termination of the contract?
	1. Does the program comply with Oregon Revised Statutes regarding expenditures (ORS 336.635(4))?
	1. Does the program meet the advertising requirements of ORS 339.122?

	JFCF G2
	1. Physically harming a student or damaging a student’s property;
	2. Knowingly placing a student in reasonable fear of physical harm to the student or damage to the student’s property; or
	3. Creating a hostile educational environment including interfering with the psychological well-being of the student.
	1. A pattern of behavior in which a person uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse to control another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age; or
	2. Behavior by which a person uses or threatens to use sexual violence against another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age.
	1. The student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyberbullying requests that notification not be provided to the student’s parents or guardians.
	2. The administrator determines that notification is not in the best interest of the student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyberbullying; and
	3. The administrator informs the student that federal law may require the student’s parents and guardians to have access to the student’s education record, including any requests of nondisclosure (from item 1 above).
	1. Within a reasonable period of time; or
	2. Promptly, for acts that caused physical harm to the student.

	CM G1
	IJ G1
	1. Understand and utilize the educational opportunities and alternatives available to them;
	2. Meet academic standards;
	3. Establish tentative career and educational goals;
	4. Create and maintain an education plan and education portfolio;
	5. Demonstrate the ability to utilize personal qualities, education and training, in the world of work;
	6. Develop decision-making skills;
	7. Obtain information about self;
	8. Accept increasing responsibility for their own actions, including the development of self-advocacy skills;
	9. Develop skills in interpersonal relations, including the use of effective and receptive communication;
	10. Utilize school and community resources;
	11. Demonstrate and discuss personal contributions to the larger community; and
	12. Know where and how to utilize personal skills in making contributions to the community.

	BDDH G1
	1. Public comment is limited to its designated place on the agenda and while time allows and should be made in an orderly manner and civil tone.
	2. A person wishing to provide public comment, if an opportunity is provided by the Board during a meeting open to the public, will complete and submit the Intent to Speak form to the Board secretary prior to the Board meeting.P0F P If attending virtu...
	3. A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting may comment on a topic not on the published agenda.
	4. A person speaking during the public comment portion of the meeting should state their name, whether they are a resident of the district, and, if speaking for an organization, the name of the organization. A spokesperson should be designated to repr...
	5. A person giving public comment is limited to an established time limit of three minutes. Statements should be brief and concise. The Board chair has discretion to waive time limits or extend the overall time allotted for public comment. Additional ...
	6. Inquiries from the public during the designated portion of the agenda will not generally be responded to immediately by the Board chair, and may be referred to the superintendent for reply at a later date. The Board will not respond to inquiries th...

	BDDH R G1
	IIA
	Selection Objectives
	Selection Criteria

	JECB
	1. Interdistrict Transfer Agreement. By written consent of the affected school boards, the student becomes a resident student of the attending district thereby allowing the attending district to receive State School Fund moneys;
	2. Tuition Paying Student. By admitting nonresident student with tuition, whereby neither affected districts are eligible for State School Fund moneys;
	3. Court Placement. If a juvenile court determines it is in the student’s best interest, a student placed in a substitute care program outside the district will continue to be considered a resident student and allowed to attend the school the student ...

	IL G1
	1. Criterion-reference assessments, including performance-based assessments, content-based assessments and other valid methods as may be required by state and federal requirements;
	1. Assessment of Essential Skills;
	2. Individual diagnostic and ability evaluations in all grades when students have been referred and parental permission obtained;
	3. Assessments by individual teachers;
	4. Optional Other schoolwide and grade levelwide assessments, as recommended by the superintendent and as approved by the Board.

	IKF G1
	1. A foster childP0F P;
	2. Homeless;
	3. A runaway;
	4. A child in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children;
	5. A child of a migrant worker; or
	6. Enrolled in the Youth Corrections Education Program or the Juvenile Detention Education Program.
	1. Three credits in mathematics (shall include one unit at the Algebra I level and two units that are at a level higher than Algebra I);
	2. Four credits in English language arts (shall include the equivalent of one unit in written composition);
	3. Three credits in science;
	4. Three credits in social sciences (including history, civicsP2F P, geography and economics (including personal finance));
	5. One credit in health education;
	6. One credit in physical education; and
	7. Three credits in career and technical education, the arts or world languages (units shall be earned in any one or a combination).
	1. Demonstrate proficiency in the Essential Skills of reading, writing, and applying mathematics in a variety of settings;
	1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile;
	2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence; and
	3. Participate in career-related learning experiences.
	[{P4F P}The district will develop procedures to provide assessment options as described in the Test Administration Manual, in the ELL student’s language of origin, and will develop procedures to ensure that locally scored assessment options administer...
	[Essential Skills Appeal
	The district will [establish an appeal process] [follow Board policy KL - Public Complaints] in the event of an appeal for the denial of a diploma based on the Essential Skills graduation requirement. The district will retain student work samples and ...
	Modified Diploma
	A modified diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the full set of academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while receiving reasonable modifications and accommodations. A mod...
	1. Has a documented history of an inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional barriers; or
	2. Has a documented history of a medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement.
	1. Three credits in English language arts;
	2. Two credits in mathematics;
	3. Two credits in science;
	4. Two credits in social sciences (which may include history, civics, geography and economics (including personal finance));
	5. One credit in health education;
	6. One credit in physical education; and
	7. One credit in career technical education, the arts or world languages (units may be earned in any one or a combination).
	1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile; and
	2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence.
	1. For a student on an individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must be consistent with the requirements established in the IEP or 504 plan. Modifications include practices and procedures that compr...
	2. For a student not on an IEP or 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must have been provided to the student during their instruction in the content area to be assessed and in the year in which the student is being assessed, and modifications ...
	1. While in grade nine through completion of high school, complete 12 credits, which may not include more than six credits in a self-contained special education classroom and will include:
	a. Two credits in mathematics;
	b. Two credits in Englishlanguage arts;
	c. Two credits in science;
	d. Three credits in history, geography, economics or civics;
	e. One credit in health;
	f. One credit in physical education; and
	g. One credit in the arts or a world language.

	2. Have a documented history of:
	a. An inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional barriers;
	b. A medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement; or
	c. A change in the student’s ability to participate in grade level activities as a result of a serious illness or injury that occurred after grade eight.


	BBAA G1
	1. Request for Information
	2. Requests for Legal Opinions
	3. Action on Complaints or Requests Made to Board Members
	4. Board Member’s Relationship to Administration
	5. Contracts or Agreements

	IGDJ G1
	JBB G1
	1. Systematically using districtwide and individual school level data, disaggregated by [P0F Prace/ethnicity, national origin, language, special education, sex, non-binary, socioeconomic status and mobility] to inform district decision making.
	2. Raising the achievement of all students while narrowing the gap between the lowest and the highest performing students.
	3. Eliminating the predictability and disparity in all aspects of education and its administration,  including but not limited to, the disproportionate representation of students by race, poverty, sex, sexual orientationP1F P, gender identity, and nat...
	4. Graduating all students ready to succeed in a diverse local, national and global community.
	1. The district shall provide every student with equitable access to high quality curriculum, support, facilities and other educational resources, even when this means differentiating resource allocation.
	2. The district shall review existing policies, programs, professional development and procedures for the promotion of educational equity, and all applicable new policies, programs and procedures will be developed [using an educational equity analysis...
	3. The district shall actively work toward a balanced teacher and administrator workforce to reflect the diversity of the student body. The district seeks to recruit, employ, support and retain a workforce that includes racial, sex gender and linguist...
	4. The district shall provide professional development to strengthen employees’ knowledge and skills for eliminating opportunity gaps and other disparities in achievement.
	5. The district shall create schools with a welcoming, inclusive culture and environment that reflects and supports diversity of the student population, their families and their community.
	6. The district shall include partners who have demonstrated culturally specific expertise, including but not limited to, families, government agencies, institutions of higher learning, early childhood education organizations, community-based organiza...
	7. The district shall provide multiple pathways to success in order to meet the needs of the diverse student body and shall actively encourage, support and expect high academic achievement for each student.
	8. The district shall provide materials and assessments that reflect the diversity of students and staff and are geared toward the understanding and appreciation of [culture, class, race, language, ethnicity, poverty, ability and other differences tha...

	IKFB G1
	1. Qualifies to receive a high school diploma, a modified diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative certificate; and
	2. Has completed basic training for, and is an active member of, a branch of the U.S. Armed Forces.

	agenda item 8
	ADPD23.tmp
	LCSD’s Comprehensive School Counseling Program
	Let’s start with the WHY:
	School Counselors Have 4 Domains 
	Slide Number 4
	ASCA Student Standards: Mindsets & Behaviors for Student Success K-12 College-, Career- and Life-Readiness Standards for Every Student




